

EDP - ENERGIAS DE PORTUGAL, S.A.

(incorporated with limited liability in the Portuguese Republic)

EDP FINANCE B.V.

(incorporated with limited liability in The Netherlands and having its statutory seat in Amsterdam)

€5,000,000,000

Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments

Applications have been made to the Financial Services Authority in its capacity as UK Listing Authority (the "UK Listing Authority") for debt instruments (the "Instruments") issued under the programme (the "Programme") described in this Information Memorandum during the period of twelve months from the date of this Information Memorandum to be admitted to the official list maintained by the UK Listing Authority (the "Official List"), and to the London Stock Exchange plc (the "London Stock Exchange") for such Instruments to be admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange's market for listed securities. This Information Memorandum comprises listing particulars approved by the UK Listing Authority as required by the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 for the purpose of giving information with regard to issues of Instruments during the period of twelve months from the date of this Information Memorandum. A copy of the listing particulars has been delivered for registration to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales in accordance with Section 83 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. Instruments may also be issued under the Programme which are not listed on any stock exchange.

Arranger for the Programme

MORGAN STANLEY

Dealers

ABN AMRO
Banco Espirito Santo Investimento S.A.
Barclays Capital
BCP Investimento—Banco Comercial Português de Investimento, S.A.
BNP PARIBAS
Citigroup
Deutsche Bank
Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein
Mitsubishi Securities International ple
Morgan Stanley
UBS Investment Bank

EDP – Energias de Portugal, S.A. (formerly known as EDP-Electricidade de Portugal, S.A.) ("EDP") and EDP Finance B.V. ("EDP B.V.") each accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Information Memorandum. To the best of the knowledge and belief of EDP and EDP B.V. (which have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in this Information Memorandum is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

Any reference in this document to listing particulars means this document excluding all information incorporated by reference. Each of EDP and EDP B.V. has confirmed that any information incorporated by reference, including any such information to which readers of this document are expressly referred, has not been and does not need to be included in the listing particulars to satisfy the requirements of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 or the listing rules of The Financial Services Authority. The company believes that none of the information incorporated therein by reference conflicts in any material respect with the information included in the listing particulars.

This Information Memorandum should be read and construed with any amendment or supplement thereto and with any other documents incorporated by reference and, in relation to any Series (as defined herein) of Instruments, should be read and construed together with the relevant Pricing Supplement(s) (as defined herein).

Each of EDP and EDP B.V. has confirmed to the dealers (the "Dealers") named under "Subscription and Sale" below and Deutsche Trustee Company Limited (the "Trustee") that this Information Memorandum is true, accurate and complete in all material respects and is not misleading; that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and based on reasonable assumptions; that there are no other facts in relation to the information contained or incorporated by reference in this Information Memorandum the omission of which would, in the context of the Programme or the issue of Instruments, make any statement herein or opinions or intentions expressed herein misleading in any material respect; and that all reasonable enquiries have been made to verify the foregoing. Each of EDP and EDP B.V. has further confirmed to the Dealers and the Trustee that this Information Memorandum (together with the relevant Pricing Supplement) contains all such information as may be required by all applicable laws, rules and regulations.

No person has been authorised by EDP, EDP B.V., any of the Dealers or the Trustee to give any information or to make any representation not contained in or not consistent with this Information Memorandum or any other document entered into in relation to the Programme or any information supplied by EDP and/or EDP B.V. or such other information as is in the public domain and, if given or made, such information or representation should not be relied upon as having been authorised by EDP, EDP B.V., any of the Dealers or the Trustee.

No representation or warranty is made or implied by the Dealers or any of their respective affiliates or the Trustee, and neither the Dealers nor any of their respective affiliates nor the Trustee makes any representation or warranty or accepts any responsibility, as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this Information Memorandum. Neither the delivery of this Information Memorandum or any Pricing Supplement nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Instrument shall, in any circumstances, create any implication that the information contained in this Information Memorandum is true subsequent to the date hereof or the date upon which this Information Memorandum has been most recently amended or supplemented or that there has been no adverse change in the financial situation of EDP and/or EDP B.V. since the date hereof or, if later, the date upon which this Information Memorandum has been most recently amended or supplemented or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is correct at any time subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or, if different, the date indicated in the document containing the same.

The distribution of this Information Memorandum and any Pricing Supplement and the offering, sale and delivery of the Instruments in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this Information Memorandum or any Pricing Supplement comes are required by EDP and EDP B.V., the Dealers and the Trustee to inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions. For a description of certain restrictions on offers, sales and deliveries of Instruments and on the distribution of this Information Memorandum or any Pricing Supplement and other offering material relating to the Instruments, see "Subscription and Sale". In particular, Instruments have not been and

will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (as amended) and may include Instruments in bearer form which are subject to U.S. tax law requirements. Subject to certain exceptions, Instruments may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to U.S. persons. In addition, neither EDP nor EDP B.V. has authorised any offer of Instruments to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 or the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995 as amended (the "Regulations"). Instruments may not lawfully be offered or sold to persons in the United Kingdom except in circumstances which do not result in an offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Regulations or otherwise in compliance with all applicable provisions of the Regulations.

Neither this Information Memorandum nor any Pricing Supplement constitutes an offer or an invitation to subscribe for or purchase any Instruments and should not be considered as a recommendation by EDP, EDP B.V., the Dealers or the Trustee or any of them that any recipient of this Information Memorandum or any Pricing Supplement should subscribe for or purchase any Instruments. Each recipient of this Information Memorandum or any Pricing Supplement shall be taken to have made its own investigation and appraisal of the condition (financial or otherwise) of EDP or, as the case may be, EDP B.V.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents shall be deemed to be incorporated in, and to form part of, this Information Memorandum:

- (1) the most recently published audited consolidated annual financial statements, and any consolidated interim semi-annual financial statements (whether audited or unaudited) published subsequently to such annual financial statements, of EDP and EDP B.V. from time to time; and
- (2) all amendments and supplements to this Information Memorandum prepared by EDP and EDP B.V. from time to time,

save that (i) any statement contained in this Information Memorandum or in any of the documents incorporated by reference in, and forming part of, this Information Memorandum shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Information Memorandum to the extent that a statement contained in any document subsequently incorporated by reference modifies or supersedes such statement provided that any modifying or superseding statement does not form part of the listing particulars as contained in this Information Memorandum given in compliance with the listing rules made under Section 79 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and (ii) any documents incorporated by reference do not form part of the listing particulars as contained in this Information Memorandum given in compliance with the listing rules made under Section 79 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Summary of the Programme	(
Terms and Conditions of the Instruments	10
Use of Proceeds	30
Provisions relating to the Instruments while in Global Form	31
Form of Pricing Supplement	35
Relationship of EDP B.V. with EDP	42
Capitalisation of EDP – Energias de Portugal, S.A	45
EDP Group	46
Management	57
EDP Finance B.V.	63
Taxation	64
Subscription and Sale	67
General Information	72

IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUE OF ANY TRANCHE (AS DEFINED HEREIN) OF INSTRUMENTS UNDER THE PROGRAMME, THE DEALER (IF ANY) WHO IS SPECIFIED IN THE RELEVANT PRICING SUPPLEMENT AS THE STABILISING MANAGER OR ANY PERSON ACTING FOR IT MAY OVER-ALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WITH A VIEW TO SUPPORTING THE MARKET PRICE OF THE INSTRUMENTS OF THE SERIES OF WHICH SUCH TRANCHE FORMS PART AT A LEVEL HIGHER THAN THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL FOR A LIMITED PERIOD. HOWEVER, THERE MAY BE NO OBLIGATION ON THE STABILISING MANAGER OR ANY AGENT OF ITS TO DO THIS. SUCH STABILISING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME AND MUST BE BROUGHT TO AN END AFTER A LIMITED PERIOD. SUCH STABILISING SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS, REGULATIONS AND RULES.

SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

The following is a brief summary only and should be read in conjunction with the rest of this document and, in relation to any Instruments, in conjunction with the relevant Pricing Supplement and, to the extent applicable, the Terms and Conditions of the Instruments set out herein.

Issuers: EDP – Energias de Portugal, S.A. ("EDP")

EDP Finance B.V. ("EDP B.V.")

Keep Well Provider: Instruments issued by EDP B.V. will benefit from a Keep Well

Agreement provided by EDP. See "Relationship of EDP B.V.

with EDP".

Arranger: Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited.

Dealers: ABN AMRO Bank N.V., Banco BPI, S.A., Banco Espírito Santo

Investimento, S.A., Banco Santander de Negócios Portugal, S.A., Barclays Bank PLC, BNP Paribas, BCP Investimento-Banco Comercial Português de Investimento, S.A., Caixa – Banco de Investimento, S.A., Citigroup Global Markets Limited, Deutsche Bank AG London, Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Mitsubishi Securities International plc, Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited and UBS Limited and any other dealer appointed from time to time by the Issuer either generally in respect of the Programme or in relation to a particular Tranche (as defined

below) of Instruments.

Issue and Paying Agent: Deutsche Bank AG.

Paying Agent: Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A.
Registrar: Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A.

Authorised Adviser: Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited.

Trustee: Deutsche Trustee Company Limited.

Initial Programme Amount: €5,000,000,000 (and, for this purpose, any Instruments

denominated in another currency shall be translated into euro at the date of the agreement to issue such Instruments using the spot rate of exchange for the purchase of such currency against payment of euro being quoted by the Issue and Paying Agent on the date on which the relevant agreement in respect of the relevant Tranche was made or such other rate as the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree) in aggregate principal amount of Instruments outstanding at any one time. The maximum aggregate principal amount of Instruments which may be outstanding under the Programme may be increased from time to time, subject to compliance with the relevant provisions of the Dealership Agreement as defined under "Subscription and Sale".

Issuance in Series:

Form of Instruments:

Currencies:

Status of the Instruments:

Instruments will be issued in series (each, a "Series"). Each Series may comprise one or more tranches ("Tranches" and each, a "Tranche") issued on different issue dates. The Instruments of each Series will all be subject to identical terms, except that the issue date, issue price and the amount of the first payment of interest may be different in respect of different Tranches. The Instruments of each Tranche will all be subject to identical terms in all respects save that a Tranche may comprise Instruments of different denominations.

Instruments may be issued in bearer form or in registered form. In respect of each Tranche of Instruments issued in bearer form, the relevant Issuer will deliver a temporary global Instrument (a "Temporary Global Instrument") or (if so specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement in respect of Instruments to which U.S. Treasury Regulation §1.163-5(c) (2)(i)(C) (the "TEFRA C Rules") applies (as so specified in such Pricing Supplement)) a permanent global instrument (a "Permanent Global Instrument"). Such global Instrument will be deposited on or before the relevant issue date therefor with a depositary or a common depositary for Euroclear S.A./N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System ("Euroclear") and/or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme ("Clearstream, Luxembourg") and/or any other relevant clearing system. Each Temporary Global Instrument will be exchangeable for a Permanent Global Instrument or, if so specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, for Instruments in definitive bearer form ("Definitive Instruments") and/or (if so specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement) registered form in accordance with its terms ("Registered Instruments") upon certification as to non-U.S. beneficial ownership as required by United States Treasury regulations. Each Permanent Global Instrument will be exchangeable for Definitive Instruments and/ or (if so specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement) Registered Instruments in accordance with its terms. (See further under "Provisions Relating to the Instruments while in Global Form" below). Definitive Instruments will, if interest-bearing, either have interest coupons ("Coupons") attached and, if appropriate, a talon ("Talon") for further Coupons and will, if the principal thereof is repayable by instalments, have payment receipts ("Receipts") attached. Each Instrument issued in registered form shall represent the entire holding of Registered Instruments by the same holder. A Registered Instrument may be registered in the name of a nominee for one or more clearing system and such an Instrument is referred to herein as a "Global Registered Instrument". Instruments in registered form may not be exchanged for Instruments in bearer form.

Instruments may be denominated in euro, U.S. dollars, Yen or in any other currency or currencies, subject to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory and/or central bank requirements. Payments in respect of Instruments may, subject to compliance as aforesaid, be made in, and/or linked to, any currency or currencies other than the currency in which such Instruments are denominated.

The Instruments will constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the relevant Issuer

and will rank *pari passu* among themselves and (save for certain obligations required to be preferred by law) equally with all other unsecured obligations (other than subordinated obligations, if any) of the relevant Issuer from time to time outstanding.

Instruments may be issued at any price and either on a fully or partly paid basis, as specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Any maturity, subject, in relation to specific currencies, to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory and/or central bank requirements.

Instruments may be redeemable at par or at such other Redemption Amount (detailed in a formula or otherwise) as may be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Early redemption will be permitted for taxation reasons as mentioned in "Terms and Conditions of the Instruments – Early Redemption for Taxation Reasons", but will otherwise be permitted only to the extent specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Instruments having a maturity of less than one year will, if the proceeds of the issue are accepted in the United Kingdom, constitute deposits for the purposes of the prohibition on accepting deposits contained in section 19 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 unless they are issued to a limited class of professional investors and have a denomination of a least £100,000 or its equivalent.

Instruments may be interest-bearing or non-interest bearing. Interest (if any) may accrue at a fixed or floating rate and may vary during the lifetime of the relevant Series.

Instruments will be issued in such denominations as may be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, subject to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory and/or central bank requirements.

The Instruments will have the benefit of a negative pledge as described in Condition 4.

Payments in respect of Instruments will be made without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of The Netherlands (where the Issuer is EDP B.V.) and Portugal (where the Issuer is EDP) or any political subdivision thereof or any authority or agency therein or thereof having power to tax, unless the withholding or deduction of such taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges is required by law. In that event, (subject to customary exceptions) such additional amounts will be paid as will result in the holders of Instruments or Coupons receiving such amounts as they would have received in respect of such Instruments or Coupons had no such withholding or deduction been required.

The Instruments and all related contractual documentation will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, English law.

Issue Price:

Maturities:

Redemption:

Early Redemption:

Instruments having a maturity of less than one year:

Interest:

Denominations:

Negative Pledge:

Taxation:

Governing Law:

Listing:

Terms and Conditions:

Clearing Systems:

Ratings:

Selling Restrictions:

Applications have been made to list Instruments to be issued under the Programme on the Official List and to admit them to trading on the London Stock Exchange plc's market for listed securities. The Instruments may also be listed, traded and/or quoted on such other or further listing authority or authorities, stock exchange or exchanges and/or quotation system or systems as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer and specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement or may be unlisted.

A Pricing Supplement will be prepared in respect of each Tranche of Instruments a copy of which will, in the case of Instruments to be listed on the Official List and admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange plc's market for listed securities be delivered to the London Stock Exchange on or before the date of issue of such Instruments. The terms and conditions applicable to each Tranche will be those set out herein under "Terms and Conditions of the Instruments" as supplemented, modified or replaced by the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or, in relation to any Instruments, any other clearing system as may be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement or as may otherwise be approved by the relevant Issuer, the Issue and Paying Agent and the Trustee.

The Programme is, as of December 22, 2004 rated A3 in respect of Instruments with a maturity of more than one year by Moody's Investors Service Limited ("Moody's") and A in respect of Instruments with a maturity of more than one year by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, a Division of the McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. ("Standard & Poor's"). Instruments issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated. Where an issue of Instruments is rated, its rating will not necessarily be the same as the rating applicable to the Programme. A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, change or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

For a description of certain restrictions on offers, sales and deliveries of Instruments and on the distribution of offering material in the United States of America, Portugal, The Netherlands, the United Kingdom, Germany and Japan. See under "Subscription and Sale".

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE INSTRUMENTS

The following are the Terms and Conditions of the Instruments which as supplemented, modified or replaced in relation to any Instruments by the relevant Pricing Supplement, will be applicable to each Series of Instruments. Certain provisions relating to the Instruments whilst in global form, and certain modifications of these Terms and Conditions applicable to Instruments whilst in global form, are described in the section entitled "Provisions relating to the Instruments whilst in Global Form".

This Instrument is one of a Series (as defined below) of Instruments issued by an Issuer (the "Issuer") which will be, as specified in the Pricing Supplement (as defined below), either EDP – Energias de Portugal, S.A. ("EDP") or EDP Finance B.V. ("EDP B.V.") and constituted by a Trust Deed (such Trust Deed as modified and/or supplemented and/or restated from time to time, the "Trust Deed") dated March 14, 2001 made between EDP, EDP B.V. and Bankers Trustee Company Limited* (the "Trustee", which expression shall include any successor as Trustee).

References herein to the "Instruments" shall be references to the Instruments of this Series. As used herein, "Tranche" means Instruments which are identical in all respects (including as to listing) and "Series" means a Tranche of Instruments together with any further Tranche or Tranches of Instruments which are (i) expressed to be consolidated and form a single series and (ii) identical in all respects (including as to listing) except for their respective Issue Dates, Interest Commencement Dates and/or Issue Prices.

The Instruments, the Receipts (as defined below) and the Coupons (as defined below) have the benefit of an Amended and Restated Issue and Paying Agency Agreement (such Amended and Restated Issue and Paying Agency Agreement as amended and/or supplemented and/or restated from time to time, the "Agency Agreement") dated December 23, 2004 and made between EDP, EDP B.V., Deutsche Bank AG London as issue and principal paying agent and agent bank (the "Issue and Paying Agent", which expression shall include any successor agent), Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A. as registrar in respect of Instruments in registered form and as paying agent (the "Registrar" which expression shall include any successor registrar and together with the Issue and Paying Agent, unless the context otherwise requires, the "Paying Agents", which expression shall include any additional or successor paying agents) and the Trustee.

The Pricing Supplement for this Instrument (or the relevant provisions thereof) is attached to or endorsed on this Instrument and supplements these Terms and Conditions and may specify other terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with these Terms and Conditions, replace or modify these Terms and Conditions for the purposes of this Instrument. References to the "Pricing Supplement" are to the Pricing Supplement (or the relevant provisions thereof) attached to or endorsed on this Instrument.

In respect of Instruments issued by EDP B.V., EDP B.V. has the benefit of a Keep Well Agreement (the "Keep Well Agreement") also dated March 14, 2001 between EDP and EDP B.V.

The Trustee acts for the benefit of the Holders (as defined below) for the time being of the Instruments (the "Holders", which expression shall, in relation to any Instruments represented by a Global Instrument, be construed as provided below), of the Receipts (as defined below) and of the Coupons (as defined below) (which expression shall, unless the context otherwise requires, include the holders of the Talons (as defined below)), all in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

Copies of the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement and the Keep Well Agreement are available for inspection during normal business hours at the registered office for the time being of the Trustee (being at December 23, 2004 at Winchester House, 1 Great Winchester Street, London EC2N 2DB) and at the specified office of each of the Paying Agents. Copies of the Pricing Supplement are obtainable during normal business hours at the specified office of each of the Paying Agents save that, if this Instrument is an unlisted Instrument of any Series, the Pricing Supplement will only be obtainable by Holders holding one or more unlisted Instruments of that Series and such Holders must produce evidence satisfactory to the Issuer and the relevant Paying Agent as to its holding of such Instruments and identity. The Holders are deemed to have notice of, and are entitled to the benefit of, all the provisions of the Trust Deed, the

Agency Agreement, the Keep Well Agreement and the Pricing Supplement which are applicable to them. The statements in these Terms and Conditions include summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed provisions of the the Trust Deed.

Words and expressions defined in the Trust Deed or the Agency Agreement or used in the Pricing Supplement shall have the same meanings where used in these Terms and Conditions unless the context otherwise requires or unless otherwise stated and provided that, in the event of inconsistency between the Trust Deed and the Agency Agreement, the Trust Deed will prevail and, in the event of inconsistency between the Trust Deed or the Agency Agreement and the Pricing Supplement, the Pricing Supplement will prevail.

1. Form and Denomination

- **1.1** Form: Instruments are issued in bearer form ("Bearer Instruments") or in registered form ("Registered Instruments"), as specified in the Pricing Supplement and are serially numbered. Registered Instruments are not exchangeable for Bearer Instruments.
- 1.2 Coupons and Talons: Interest-bearing Bearer Instruments have attached thereto, at the time of their initial delivery, coupons ("Coupons"), presentation of which will be a prerequisite to the payment of interest save in certain circumstances specified herein. In addition, if so specified in the Pricing Supplement, such Instruments have attached thereto, at the time of their initial delivery, a talon ("Talon") for further coupons and the expression "Coupons" shall, where the context so requires, include Talons.
- **1.3** Interest Basis: This Instrument may be a Fixed Rate Instrument, a Floating Rate Instrument, a Zero Coupon Instrument, an Index Linked Interest Instrument or a combination of any of the foregoing, depending upon the Interest Basis shown in the Pricing Supplement.
- **1.4** Redemption/Payment Basis: This Instrument may be an Index Linked Redemption Instrument, an Instalment Instrument, a Dual Currency Instrument, a Partly Paid Instrument or a combination of any of the foregoing, depending on the Redemption/Payment Basis shown in the Pricing Supplement.
- **1.5** Instalment Instruments: Bearer Instruments, the principal amount of which is repayable by instalments ("Instalment Instruments") have attached thereto, at the time of their initial delivery, payment receipts ("Receipts") in respect of the instalments of principal.
- **1.6** Denomination of Bearer Instruments: Bearer Instruments are in the Specified Denomination or Denominations (each of which denominations is integrally divisible by each smaller denomination) specified in the Pricing Supplement. Bearer Instruments of one denomination may not be exchanged for Bearer Instruments of any other denomination.
- **1.7** *Specified Denomination of Registered Instruments:* Registered Instruments are in the minimum Specified Denomination specified in the Pricing Supplement or integral multiples thereof.
- **1.8** Currency of Instruments: The Instruments are denominated in such Specified Currency as may be specified in the Pricing Supplement. Any currency may be so specified, subject to compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory and/or central bank requirements.

2. Title and Transfer

- **2.1** *Title to Bearer Instruments:* Title to Bearer Instruments, Receipts and Coupons passes by delivery. References herein to the "Holders" of Bearer Instruments or of Receipts or Coupons are to the bearers of such Bearer Instruments or such Receipts or Coupons.
- **2.2** Title to Registered Instruments: Title to Registered Instruments passes by registration in the register which the Issuer shall procure to be kept by the Registrar. References herein to the "Holders" of Registered Instruments are to the persons in whose names such Registered Instruments are so registered in the relevant register.
- **2.3** Holder as Owner: The Holder of any Bearer Instrument, Coupon or Registered Instrument will (except as otherwise required by applicable law or regulatory requirement) be treated as its absolute owner for all purposes (whether or not it is overdue and regardless of any notice of ownership, trust or

any interest thereof or therein, any writing thereon, or any theft or loss thereof) and no person shall be liable for so treating such Holder.

- 2.4 Transfer of Registered Instruments: A Registered Instrument may, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Agency Agreement, be transferred in whole or in part only (provided that such part is, or is an integral multiple of, the minimum Specified Denomination) upon the surrender of the Registered Instrument to be transferred, together with the form of transfer endorsed on it duly completed and executed, at the specified office of the Registrar or any other Paying Agent. A new Registered Instrument will be issued to the transferee and, in the case of a transfer of part only of a Registered Instrument, a new Registered Instrument in respect of the balance not transferred will be issued to the transferor.
- 2.5 Exchange of Bearer Instruments: If so specified in the Pricing Supplement, the Holder of Bearer Instruments may exchange the same for the same aggregate nominal amount of Registered Instruments upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Agency Agreement. In order to exchange a Bearer Instrument for a Registered Instrument, the Holder thereof shall surrender such Bearer Instrument at the specified office outside the United States of the Registrar or of any other Paying Agent together with a written request for the exchange. Each Bearer Instrument so surrendered must be accompanied by all unmatured Receipts and Coupons appertaining thereto other than the Coupon in respect of the next payment of interest falling due after the exchange date (as defined in Condition 2.6) where the exchange date would, but for the provisions of Condition 2.6, occur between the Record Date (as defined in Condition 6.4) for such payment of interest and the date on which such payment of interest falls due.
- 2.6 New Registered Instruments: Each new Registered Instrument to be issued upon the transfer of a Registered Instrument or the exchange of a Bearer Instrument for a Registered Instrument will, within five Relevant Banking Days of the transfer date or, as the case may be, the exchange date, be available for collection by each relevant Holder at the specified office of the Registrar or, at the option of the Holder requesting such exchange or transfer be mailed (by uninsured post at the risk of the Holder(s) entitled thereto) to such address(es) as may be specified by such Holder. For these purposes, a form of transfer or request for exchange received by the Registrar or another Paying Agent after the Record Date in respect of any payment due in respect of Registered Instruments shall be deemed not to be effectively received by the Registrar or such other Paying Agent until the day following the due date for such payment. For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions:
 - (a) "Relevant Banking Day" means a day on which commercial banks are open for business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the place where the specified office of the Registrar is located and, in the case only of an exchange of a Bearer Instrument for a Registered Instrument where such request for exchange is made to another Paying Agent, in the place where the specified office of such Paying Agent is located;
 - (b) the "exchange date" shall be the Relevant Banking Day following the day on which the relevant Bearer Instrument shall have been surrendered for exchange in accordance with Condition 2.5: and
 - (c) the "transfer date" shall be the Relevant Banking Day following the day on which the relevant Registered Instrument shall have been surrendered for transfer in accordance with Condition 2.4.
- 2.7 No Charges upon Transfer or Exchange: The issue of new Registered Instruments on transfer or on the exchange of Bearer Instruments for Registered Instruments will be effected without charge by or on behalf of the Issuer, the Registrar or any other Paying Agent, but upon payment by the applicant of (or the giving by the applicant of such indemnity as the Issuer, the Registrar or such other Paying Agent may require in respect of) any tax, duty or other governmental charges which may be imposed in relation thereto.

3. Status of the Instruments

3.1 Status of the Instruments: The Instruments and any relative Receipts and Coupons are direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and (subject to the provisions of Condition 4) unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank pari passu among themselves and (subject as aforesaid and save for certain obligations required to be preferred by law) equally with all other unsecured obligations (other than subordinated obligations, if any) of the Issuer from time to time outstanding.

4. Negative Pledge

So long as any of the Instruments remains outstanding (as defined in the Trust Deed), neither the Issuer nor, if EDP B.V. is the Issuer, EDP will create or, save only by operation of law, have outstanding any mortgage, lien, pledge or other charge (each a "Security Interest") other than any Permitted Security (as defined below) upon the whole or any part of its undertaking or assets, present or future (including any uncalled capital) to secure any Loan Stock of any Person or to secure any obligation of any Person under any guarantee of or indemnity or purchase of indebtedness undertaking in respect of any Loan Stock of any other Person without at the same time or prior thereto at the option of the Issuer or, if the Issuer is EDP B.V., EDP either (i) securing the Instruments or securing EDP's obligations under the Keep Well Agreement in each case equally and rateably with such Loan Stock, guarantee, indemnity or purchase of indebtedness undertaking to the satisfaction of the Trustee or (ii) providing such other security for or other arrangement in respect of the Instruments or EDP's obligations under the Keep Well Agreement as the Trustee shall in its absolute discretion deem not materially less beneficial to the interests of the Holders or which shall be approved by an Extraordinary Resolution (as defined in the Trust Deed) of the Holders.

For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions:

"Loan Stock" means indebtedness (other than the Instruments) having an original maturity of more than one year which is in the form of, or represented or evidenced by, bonds, notes, debentures, loan stock or other debt securities (not comprising, for the avoidance of doubt, preference shares or other equity securities) which for the time being are, or are intended to be with the consent of the issuer thereof, quoted, listed, ordinarily dealt in or traded on any stock exchange and/or quotation system or by any listing authority or other established securities market other than any such indebtedness where the majority thereof is initially placed with investors domiciled in Portugal and who purchase such indebtedness in Portugal.

"Permitted Security" means:

- (i) in the case of a consolidation or merger of EDP with or into another company (the "Combining Company") any Security Interest over assets of EDP if it is the surviving company or the company (if other than EDP) surviving or formed by such consolidation or merger provided that: (i) such Security Interest was created by the Combining Company over assets owned by it, (ii) such Security Interest is existing at the time of such consolidation or merger, (iii) such Security Interest was not created in contemplation of such consolidation or merger and (iv) the amount secured by such Security Interest is not increased thereafter; or
- (ii) any Security Interest on or with respect to assets (including but not limited to receivables) of the Issuer or, if EDP B.V. is the Issuer, EDP which is created pursuant to any securitisation or like arrangement in accordance with normal market practice and whereby the indebtedness secured by such Security Interest or the indebtedness in respect of any guarantee or indemnity which is secured by such Security Interest is limited to the value of such assets; or
- (iii) any Security Interest securing any indebtedness incurred in relation to any asset for the purpose of financing the whole or any part of the acquisition, creation, construction, improvement or development of such asset where the financial institutions to whom such indebtedness is owed have recourse solely to the applicable project borrower (where such project borrower is formed solely or principally for the purpose of the relevant project)

and/or such asset (or any derivative asset thereof) and/or the shares held in such project borrower.

"Person" means any individual, company, corporation, firm, partnership, joint venture, association, organisation, state, agency of a state or other entity, whether or not having separate legal personality.

5. Interest

5A. Interest on Fixed Rate Instruments

Each Fixed Rate Instrument bears interest on its outstanding nominal amount (or, if it is a Partly Paid Instrument, the amount paid up) from and including the Interest Commencement Date at the rate(s) per annum equal to the Rate(s) of Interest payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each year and on the Maturity Date if that does not fall on an Interest Payment Date.

Except as provided in the Pricing Supplement, the amount of interest payable on each Interest Payment Date in respect of the Fixed Interest Period ending on such date will amount to the Fixed Coupon Amount. Payments of interest on any Interest Payment Date will, if so specified in the Pricing Supplement, amount to the Broken Amount so specified.

If interest is required to be calculated for a period ending other than on an Interest Payment Date, such interest shall be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination, multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention.

"Day Count Fraction" means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest for any Fixed Interest Period:

- (i) if "Actual/Actual (ISMA)" is specified in the Pricing Supplement:
 - (a) in the case of Instruments where the number of days in the relevant period from and including the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest Commencement Date) to but excluding the relevant payment date (the "Accrual Period") is equal to or shorter than the Determination Period during which the Accrual Period ends, the number of days in such Accrual Period divided by the product of (1) the number of days in such Determination Period and (2) the number of Determination Dates (as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) that would occur in one calendar year; or
 - (b) in the case of Instruments where the Accrual Period is longer than the Determination Period during which the Accrual Period ends, the sum of:
 - (1) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the Determination Period in which the Accrual Period begins divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates (as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) that would occur in one calendar year; and
 - (2) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the next Determination Period divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates that would occur in one calendar year; and
- (ii) if "30/360" is specified in the Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the period from and including the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest Commencement Date) to but excluding the relevant payment date (such number of days being calculated on the basis of 12 30-day months) divided by 360; and
- (iii) if "Actual/365" or "Actual/Actual (ISDA)" is specified in the Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the Fixed Interest Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that Interest Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion

of the Fixed Interest Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days in that portion of the Fixed Interest Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365).

In these Terms and Conditions:

"Determination Period" means the period from and including a Determination Date to but excluding the next Determination Date;

"Fixed Interest Period" means the period from and including an Interest Payment Date (or the Interest Commencement Date) to but excluding the next (or first) Interest Payment Date; and

"sub-unit" means, with respect to any currency other than euro, the lowest amount of such currency that is available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect to euro, means one cent.

5B. Interest on Floating Rate Instruments and Index Linked Interest Instruments

5B.1 Interest Payment Dates: Each Floating Rate Instrument and Index Linked Interest Instrument bears interest on its outstanding nominal amount (or, if it is a Partly Paid Instrument, the amount paid up) from and including the Interest Commencement Date and such interest will be payable in arrear on either:

- (i) the Specified Interest Payment Date(s) (each an "Interest Payment Date") in each year specified in the Pricing Supplement; or
- (ii) if no Specified Interest Payment Date(s) is/are specified in the Pricing Supplement, each date (each an "Interest Payment Date") which falls the number of months or other period specified as the Specified Period in the Pricing Supplement after the preceding Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest Payment Date, after the Interest Commencement Date.

Such interest will be payable in respect of each Interest Period (which expression shall, in these Terms and Conditions, mean the period from and including an Interest Payment Date (or the Interest Commencement Date) to but excluding the next (or first) Interest Payment Date).

If a Business Day Convention is specified in the Pricing Supplement and (x) if there is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month in which an Interest Payment Date should occur or (y) if any Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business Day, then, if the Business Day Convention specified is:

- (1) in any case where Specified Periods are specified in accordance with Condition 5B.1(i) above, the Floating Rate Convention, such Interest Payment Date (i) in the case of (x) above, shall be the last day that is a Business Day in the relevant month and the provisions of (B) below shall apply *mutatis mutandis* or (ii) in the case of (y) above, shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event (A) such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day and (B) each subsequent Interest Payment Date shall be the last Business Day in the month which falls the Specified Period after the preceding applicable Interest Payment Date occurred; or
- (2) the Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day; or
- (3) the Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day; or
- (4) the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.

In these Terms and Conditions, "Business Day" means a day which is both:

- (A) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in London and any Additional Business Centre specified in the Pricing Supplement; and
- (B) either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if other than London and any Additional Business Centre) or (2) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET) System (the "TARGET System") is open.
- **5B.2** Rate of Interest: The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Instruments and Index Linked Interest Instruments will be determined in the manner specified in the Pricing Supplement.
- **5B.3** ISDA Determination for Floating Rate Instruments: Where ISDA Determination is specified in the Pricing Supplement as the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will be the relevant ISDA Rate plus or minus (as indicated in the Pricing Supplement) the Margin (if any). For the purposes of this Condition 5B.3, "ISDA Rate" for an Interest Period means a rate equal to the Floating Rate that would be determined by the Issue and Paying Agent under an interest rate swap transaction if the Issue and Paying Agent were acting as Calculation Agent for that swap transaction under the terms of an agreement incorporating the 2000 ISDA Definitions (as amended and updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Instruments, published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. (the "ISDA Definitions")) and under which:
 - (1) the Floating Rate Option is as specified in the Pricing Supplement;
 - (2) the Designated Maturity is a period specified in the Pricing Supplement; and
 - (3) the relevant Reset Date is either (i) if the applicable Floating Rate Option is based on the London inter-bank offered rate ("LIBOR") or on the Euro-zone inter-bank offered rate ("EURIBOR") for a currency, the first day of that Interest Period or (ii) in any other case, as specified in the Pricing Supplement.

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (A), "Floating Rate", "Calculation Agent", "Floating Rate Option", "Designated Maturity" and "Reset Date" have the meanings given to those terms in the ISDA Definitions.

- **5B.4** Screen Rate Determination for Floating Rate Instruments: Where Screen Rate Determination is specified in the Pricing Supplement as the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will, subject as provided below, be either:
 - (i) the offered quotation; or
 - (ii) the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations.

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate which appears or appear, as the case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page as at 11.00 a.m. (London time, in the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR) on the Interest Determination Date in question plus or minus (as indicated in the Pricing Supplement) the Margin (if any), all as determined by the Issue and Paying Agent. If five or more of such offered quotations are available on the Relevant Screen Page, the highest (or, if there is more than one such highest quotation, one only of such quotations) and the lowest (or, if there is more than one such lowest quotation, one only of such quotations) shall be disregarded by the Issue and Paying Agent for the purpose of determining the arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of such offered quotations.

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for determining the Rate of Interest in the event that the Relevant Screen Page is not available or if, in the case of (i) above, no such offered quotation appears

or, in the case of (ii) above, fewer than three such offered quotations appear, in each case as at the time specified in the preceding paragraph.

If the Reference Rate from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Instruments is specified in the Pricing Supplement as being other than LIBOR or EURIBOR, the Rate of Interest in respect of such Instruments will be determined as provided in the Pricing Supplement.

5B.5 *Minimum Rate of Interest and/or Maximum Rate of Interest:* If the Pricing Supplement specifies a Minimum Rate of Interest for any Interest Period, then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in accordance with the provisions of Conditions 5B.2, 5B.3 or 5B.4 above is less than such Minimum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be such Minimum Rate of Interest.

If the Pricing Supplement specifies a Maximum Rate of Interest for any Interest Period, then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in accordance with the provisions of Conditions 5B.2, 5B.3 or 5B.4 is greater than such Maximum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be such Maximum Rate of Interest.

5B.6 Determination of Rate of Interest and calculation of Interest Amounts: The Issue and Paying Agent, in the case of Floating Rate Instruments, and the Calculation Agent, in the case of Index Linked Interest Instruments, will at or as soon as practicable after each time at which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, determine the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period. In the case of Index Linked Interest Instruments, the Calculation Agent will notify the Issue and Paying Agent of the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period as soon as practicable after calculating the same.

The Issue and Paying Agent will calculate the amount of interest (the "Interest Amount") payable on the Floating Rate Instruments or Index Linked Interest Instruments in respect of each Specified Denomination for the relevant Interest Period. Each Interest Amount shall be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination, multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention.

"Day Count Fraction" means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest for any Interest Period:

- (i) if "Actual/365" or "Actual/Actual (ISDA)" is specified in the Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that Interest Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);
- (ii) if "Actual/365 (Fixed)" is specified in the Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365;
- (iii) if "Actual/365 (Sterling)" is specified in the Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 or, in the case of an Interest Payment Date falling in a leap year, 366;
- (iv) if "Actual/360" is specified in the Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360;
- (v) if "30/360", "360/360" or "Bond Basis" is specified in the Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months (unless (a) the last day of the Interest Period is the 31st day of a month but the first day of the Interest Period is a day other than the 30th or 31st day of a month, in which case the month that includes that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (b) the last day of the Interest Period is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month)); and

- (vi) if "30E/360" or "Eurobond Basis" is specified in the Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months, without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the Interest Period unless, in the case of the final Interest Period, the Maturity Date is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month).
- SB.7 Notification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amounts: The Issue and Paying Agent will cause the Rate of Interest and each Interest Amount for each Interest Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the Issuer, the Trustee and any stock exchange or other relevant authority on which the relevant Floating Rate Instruments or Index Linked Interest Instruments are for the time being listed or by which they have been admitted to listing and notice thereof to be published in accordance with Condition 15 as soon as possible after their determination but in no event later than the fourth London Business Day thereafter. Each Interest Amount and Interest Payment Date so notified may subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative arrangements made by way of adjustment) without prior notice in the event of an extension or shortening of the Interest Period. Any such amendment will be promptly notified to each stock exchange or other relevant authority on which the relevant Floating Rate Instruments or Index Linked Interest Instruments are for the time being listed or by which they have been admitted to listing and to the Holders in accordance with Condition 15. For the purposes of this paragraph, the expression "London Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks and foreign exchange markets are open for business in London.
- **5B.8** Determination or calculation by Trustee: If for any reason at any time the Issue and Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the Calculation Agent defaults in its obligations to determine the Rate of Interest or the Issue and Paying Agent defaults in its obligation to calculate any Interest Amount in accordance with the provisions of Conditions 5B.3 or 5B.4 above or as otherwise specified in the Pricing Supplement, as the case may be, and in each case, in accordance with paragraph (iv) above, the Trustee shall determine the Rate of Interest at such rate as, in its absolute discretion (having such regard as it shall think fit to the foregoing provisions of this Condition, but subject always to any Minimum or Maximum Rate of Interest specified in the Pricing Supplement), it shall deem fair and reasonable in all the circumstances or, as the case may be, the Trustee shall calculate the Interest Amount(s) in such manner as it shall deem fair and reasonable in all the circumstances and each such determination or calculation shall be deemed to have been made by the Issue and Paying Agent or the Calculation Agent, as applicable.
- **5B.9** Certificates to be final: All certificates, communications, opinions, determinations, calculations, quotations and decisions given, expressed, made or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this Condition 5B, whether by the Issue and Paying Agent or, if applicable, the Calculation Agent or the Trustee, shall (in the absence of wilful default, bad faith or manifest error) be binding on the Issuer, the Trustee, EDP (if the Issuer is EDP B.V.), the Issue and Paying Agent, the Calculation Agent (if applicable), the other Paying Agents and all Holders and (in the absence as aforesaid) no liability to the Issuer, EDP (if the Issuer is EDP B.V.) or the Holders shall attach to the Issue and Paying Agent or, if applicable, the Calculation Agent or the Trustee in connection with the exercise or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions pursuant to such provisions.

5C. Interest on Dual Currency Instruments

In the case of Dual Currency Instruments, if the rate or amount of interest falls to be determined by reference to an exchange rate, the rate or amount of interest payable shall be determined in the manner specified in the Pricing Supplement.

5D. Interest on Partly Paid Instruments

In the case of Partly Paid Instruments (other than Partly Paid Instruments which are Zero Coupon Instruments), interest will accrue as aforesaid on the paid-up nominal amount of such Instruments and otherwise as specified in the Pricing Supplement.

5E. Accrual of interest

Each Instrument (or, in the case of the redemption of part only of a Instrument, that part only of such Instrument) will cease to bear interest (if any) from the date for its redemption unless, upon due presentation thereof, payment of principal is improperly withheld or refused. In such event, interest will continue to accrue as provided in the Trust Deed.

6. Payments

- 6.1 *Method of payment:* Subject as provided below:
 - (i) payments in a Specified Currency other than euro will be made by credit or transfer to an account in the relevant Specified Currency maintained by the payee with, or, at the option of the payee, by a cheque in such Specified Currency drawn on, a bank in the principal financial centre of the country of such Specified Currency; and
 - (ii) payments in euro will be made by credit or transfer to a euro account (or any other account to which euro may be credited or transferred) specified by the payee or, at the option of the payee, by a euro cheque.

Payments will be subject in all cases to any fiscal or other laws and regulations applicable thereto in the place of payment, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 8.

6.2 Presentation of Bearer Instruments, Receipts and Coupons: Payments of principal in respect of Bearer Instruments will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner provided in Condition 6.1 above only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of Bearer Instruments, and payments of interest in respect of Bearer Instruments will (subject as provided below) be made as aforesaid only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of Coupons, in each case at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States (which expression, as used herein, means the United States of America (including the States and the District of Columbia, its territories, its possessions and other areas subject to its jurisdiction)).

Payments of instalments of principal (if any) in respect of Bearer Instruments, other than the final instalment, will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner provided in Condition 6.1 above against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the relevant Receipt in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Payment of the final instalment will be made in the manner provided in Condition 6.1 above only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the relevant Instrument in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Each Receipt must be presented for payment of the relevant instalment together with the definitive Instrument to which it appertains. Receipts presented without the definitive Instrument to which they appertain do not constitute valid obligations of the Issuer. Upon the date on which any definitive Instrument becomes due and repayable, unmatured Receipts (if any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment shall be made in respect thereof.

Fixed Rate Instruments in bearer form (other than Dual Currency Instruments, Index Linked Instruments or Long Maturity Instruments (as defined below)) should be presented for payment together with all unmatured Coupons appertaining thereto (which expression shall for this purpose include Coupons falling to be issued on exchange of matured Talons), failing which the amount of any missing unmatured Coupon (or, in the case of payment not being made in full, the same proportion of the amount of such missing unmatured Coupon as the sum so paid bears to the sum due) will be deducted from the sum due for payment. Each amount of principal so deducted will be paid in the manner mentioned above against surrender of the relative missing Coupon at any time before the expiry of 10 years after the Relevant Date (as defined in Condition 8) in respect of such principal (whether or not such Coupon would otherwise have become void under Condition 9) or, if later, five years from the date on which such Coupon would otherwise have become due, but in no event thereafter.

Upon any Fixed Rate Instrument in bearer form becoming due and repayable prior to its Maturity Date, all unmatured Talons (if any) appertaining thereto will become void and no further Coupons will be issued in respect thereof.

Upon the date on which any Floating Rate Instrument, Dual Currency Instrument, Index Linked Interest Instrument or Long Maturity Instrument in definitive form becomes due and repayable, unmatured Coupons and Talons (if any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment or, as the case may be, exchange for further Coupons shall be made in respect thereof. A "Long Maturity Instrument" is a Fixed Rate Instrument (other than a Fixed Rate Instrument which on issue had a Talon attached) whose nominal amount on issue is less than the aggregate interest payable thereon provided that such Instrument shall cease to be a Long Maturity Instrument on the Interest Payment Date on which the aggregate amount of interest remaining to be paid after that date is less than the nominal amount of such Instrument.

If the due date for redemption of any Bearer Instrument is not an Interest Payment Date, interest (if any) accrued in respect of such Instrument from and including the preceding Interest Payment Date or, as the case may be, the Interest Commencement Date shall be payable only against surrender of the relevant Bearer Instrument.

- **6.3** U.S. Paying Agent: Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of Condition 6.2, if any amount of principal and/or interest in respect of Instruments is payable in U.S. dollars, such U.S. dollar payments of principal and/or interest in respect of such Instruments will be made at the specified office of a Paying Agent in the United States if:
 - (i) the Issuer has appointed Paying Agents with specified offices outside the United States with the reasonable expectation that such Paying Agents would be able to make payment in U.S. dollars at such specified offices outside the United States of the full amount of principal and interest on the Instruments in the manner provided above when due;
 - (ii) payment of the full amount of such principal and interest at all such specified offices outside the United States is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange controls or other similar restrictions on the full payment or receipt of principal and interest in U.S. dollars; and
 - (iii) such payment is then permitted under United States law without involving, in the opinion of the Issuer, adverse tax consequences to the Issuer or, if the Issuer is EDP B.V., EDP Energias de Portugal, S.A.
- **6.4** Registered Instruments: Payments of amounts (including accrued interest) due on the final redemption of Registered Instruments will be made against presentation and, save in the case of a partial redemption, surrender of the relevant Registered Instruments at the specified office of the Registrar.

Payments of amounts (whether principal, interest or otherwise) due in respect of Registered Instruments will be paid to the Holders thereof (or, in the case of joint Holders, the first-named) as appearing in the register kept by the Registrar as at opening of business (Luxembourg time) on the fifteenth Luxembourg business day (the "Record Date") before the due date for such payment provided that the amounts due in respect of Registered Instruments under Condition 10 will be paid to the Holders thereof (or, in the case of joint Holders, the first-named) as appearing in such register as at opening of business (Luxembourg time) on the date on which such payment is made.

- 6.5 Payment Day: If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Instrument, Receipt or Coupon is not a Payment Day, the holder thereof shall not be entitled to payment until the next following Payment Day in the relevant place and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment in respect of such delay. For these purposes, "Payment Day" means any day which (subject to Condition 9) is:
 - (i) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in London, any additional Financial Centre specified in the Pricing Supplement and, if presentation is required for payment, in the relevant place of presentation; and
 - (ii) either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if other than the place of presentation, London and any Additional Financial Centre) or (2) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which the TARGET System is open.

- **6.6** *Interpretation of principal and interest:* Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to principal in respect of the Instruments shall be deemed to include, as applicable:
 - (i) any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to principal under Condition 8 or under any undertakings or covenants given in addition thereto or in substitution therefor pursuant to the Trust Deed;
 - (ii) the Final Redemption Amount of the Instruments;
 - (iii) the Early Redemption Amount of the Instruments;
 - (iv) the Optional Redemption Amount(s) (if any) of the Instruments;
 - (v) in relation to Instruments redeemable in instalments, the Instalment Amounts;
 - (vi) in relation to Zero Coupon Instruments, the Amortised Face Amount (as defined in Condition 7.5); and
 - (vii) any premium and any other amounts which may be payable by the Issuer under or in respect of the Instruments.

Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to interest in respect of the Instruments shall be deemed to include, as applicable, any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to interest under Condition 8 or under any undertakings or covenants given in addition thereto or in substitution thereof pursuant to the Trust Deed.

7. Redemption and Purchase

- **7.1** Redemption at maturity: Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled as specified below, each Instrument will be redeemed by the Issuer at its Final Redemption Amount specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the Pricing Supplement in the relevant Specified Currency on the Maturity Date.
- **7.2** Redemption for tax reasons: The Instruments may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer in whole, but not in part, at any time (if this Instrument is neither a Floating Rate Instrument nor an Index Linked Interest Instrument) or on any Interest Payment Date (if this Instrument is either a Floating Rate Instrument or an Index Linked Interest Instrument), on giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' notice to the Trustee, the Issue and Paying Agent and, in accordance with Condition 15, the Holders (which notice shall be irrevocable), if the Issuer satisfies the Trustee immediately prior to the giving of such notice that:
 - (i) on the occasion of the next payment due under the Instruments, the Issuer has or will become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided or referred to in Condition 8 as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws or regulations of the relevant Tax Jurisdiction (as defined in Condition 8) or any political subdivision of, or any authority in, or of, the relevant Tax Jurisdiction having power to tax, or any change in the application or official interpretation of such laws or regulations, which change or amendment becomes effective on or after the date on which agreement is reached to issue the first Tranche of the Instruments; and
- (ii) such obligation cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking reasonable measures available to it, provided that no such notice of redemption shall be given earlier than 90 days prior to the earliest date on which the Issuer would be obliged to pay such additional amounts were a payment in respect of the Instruments then due.

Prior to the publication of any notice of redemption pursuant to this Condition, the Issuer shall deliver to the Trustee a certificate signed by two Directors of EDP stating that the Issuer is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a statement of facts showing that the conditions precedent to the right of the Issuer so to redeem have occurred, and an opinion of independent legal advisers of recognised standing to the effect that the Issuer has or will become obliged to pay such additional amounts as a result of such change or amendment and the Trustee shall be entitled to accept such certificate and opinion as

sufficient evidence of the satisfaction of the conditions precedent set out above in which event they shall be conclusive and binding on the Holders.

Instruments redeemed pursuant to this Condition 7.2 will be redeemed at their Early Redemption Amount referred to in Condition 7.5 below together (if appropriate) with interest accrued to but excluding the date of redemption.

- **7.3** Redemption at the option of the Issuer (Issuer Call): If Issuer Call is specified in the Pricing Supplement, the Issuer may, having given:
 - (i) not less than 15 nor more than 30 days' notice (or such other period of notice as may be specified in the Pricing Supplement) to the Holders in accordance with Condition 15; and
 - (ii) not less than 15 days before the giving of the notice referred to in (i), notice to the Issue and Paying Agent and the Trustee;

(which notices shall be irrevocable and shall specify the date fixed for redemption), redeem all or some only of the Instruments then outstanding on any Optional Redemption Date and at the Optional Redemption Amount(s) specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the Pricing Supplement together, if appropriate, with interest accrued to but excluding the relevant Optional Redemption Date. Any such redemption must be of a nominal amount not less than the Minimum Redemption Amount or not more than the Higher Redemption Amount, in each case as may be specified in the Pricing Supplement. In the case of a partial redemption of Instruments, the Instruments to be redeemed ("Redeemed Instruments") will be selected individually by lot not more than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption (such date of selection being hereinafter called the "Selection Date"). A list of the serial numbers of such Redeemed Instruments will be published in accordance with Condition 15 not less than 15 days prior to the date fixed for redemption.

7.4 Redemption at the option of the Holders (Investor Put): If Investor Put is specified in the Pricing Supplement, upon the holder of any Instrument giving to the Issuer in accordance with Condition 15 not less than 15 nor more than 30 days' notice (which notice shall be irrevocable) the Issuer will, upon the expiry of such notice, redeem, subject to, and in accordance with, the terms specified in the Pricing Supplement, in whole (but not in part), such Instrument on the Optional Redemption Date and at the Optional Redemption Amount together, if appropriate, with interest accrued to but excluding the Optional Redemption Date.

To exercise the right to require redemption of this Instrument the holder of this Instrument must deliver at the specified office of any Paying Agent at any time during normal business hours of such Paying Agent falling within the notice period a duly completed and signed notice of exercise in the form (for the time being current) obtainable from any specified office of any Paying Agent (a "Put Notice") in which the holder must specify a bank account (or, if payment is required to be made by cheque, an address) to which payment is to be made under this Condition together in the case of Bearer Instruments with the Instruments.

- **7.5** Early Redemption Amounts: For the purpose of Condition 7.2 above and Condition 10, each Instrument will be redeemed at the Early Redemption Amount calculated as follows:
 - (i) at the amount specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the Pricing Supplement or, if no such amount or manner is so specified in the Pricing Supplement, at its nominal amount; or
 - (ii) in the case of a Zero Coupon Instrument, at an amount (the "Amortised Face Amount") equal to the sum of the Reference Price and the product of the Accrual Yield (compounded annually) being applied to the Reference Price from and including the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Instruments to but excluding the date fixed for redemption or (as the case may be) the date upon which such Instrument becomes due and repayable.

Where such calculation is to be made for a period which is not a whole number of years, it shall be made on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each or on such other calculation basis as may be specified in the Pricing Supplement.

- **7.6** Instalments: Instalment Instruments will be redeemed in the Instalment Amounts and on the Instalment Dates. In the case of early redemption, the Early Redemption Amount will be determined pursuant to Condition 7.5.
- **7.7** *Partly Paid Instruments:* Partly Paid Instruments will be redeemed, whether at maturity, early redemption or otherwise, in accordance with the provisions of this Condition and the Pricing Supplement.
- **7.8** Purchases: EDP or any subsidiary of EDP may at any time purchase Instruments (provided that, in the case of Bearer Instruments, all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons appertaining thereto are purchased therewith) at any price in the open market or otherwise. If purchases are made by tender, tenders must be available to all Holders alike. Such Instruments may be held, reissued, resold or, at the option of EDP, surrendered to any Paying Agent for cancellation.
- **7.9** Cancellation: All Instruments which are redeemed will forthwith be cancelled (together with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons attached thereto or surrendered therewith at the time of redemption). All Instruments so cancelled and Instruments purchased and cancelled pursuant to Condition 7.8 above (together with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons cancelled therewith) shall be forwarded to the Issue and Paying Agent and cannot be reissued or resold.
- **7.10** Late payment on Zero Coupon Instruments: If the amount payable in respect of any Zero Coupon Instrument upon redemption of such Zero Coupon Instrument pursuant to Condition 7.1, 7.2, 7.3 or 7.4 above or upon its becoming due and repayable as provided in Condition 10 is improperly withheld or refused, the amount due and repayable in respect of such Zero Coupon Instrument shall be the amount calculated as provided in Condition 7.5(ii) as though the references therein to the date fixed for the redemption or the date upon which such Zero Coupon Instrument becomes due and payable were replaced by references to the date which is the earlier of:
 - (i) the date on which all amounts due in respect of such Zero Coupon Instrument have been paid; and
 - (ii) five days after the date on which the full amount of the moneys payable in respect of such Zero Coupon Instrument has been received by the Issue and Paying Agent or the Trustee and notice to that effect has been given to the Holders in accordance with Condition 15.

8. Taxation

All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons by or on behalf of the Issuer will be made without withholding or deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes or duties of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of the relevant Tax Jurisdiction unless such withholding or deduction is required by law. In such event, the Issuer will pay such additional amounts as shall be necessary in order that the net amounts received by the holders of the Instruments, Receipts or Coupons after such withholding or deduction shall equal the respective amounts of principal and interest which would otherwise have been receivable in respect of the Instruments, Receipts or Coupons, as the case may be, in the absence of such withholding or deduction; except that no such additional amounts shall be payable with respect to any Instrument, Receipt or Coupon:

- (i) presented for payment by or on behalf of a holder who is liable for such taxes or duties in respect of such Instrument, Receipt or Coupon by reason of his having some connection with the relevant Tax Jurisdiction other than the mere holding of such Instrument, Receipt or Coupon;
- (ii) presented for payment in the case of a Bearer Instrument, in the relevant Tax Jurisdiction;
- (iii) presented for payment in the case of Bearer Instruments more than 30 days after the Relevant Date (as defined below) except to the extent that the holder thereof would have been entitled to an additional amount on presenting the same for payment on such thirtieth day assuming that day to have been a Payment Day (as defined in Condition 6);
- (iv) where such withholding or deduction is imposed on a payment to an individual and is required to be made pursuant to European Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any other Directive implementing the conclusion of the ECOFIN Council meeting of

- November 26-27, 2000 on the taxation of savings income or any law implementing or complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive; or
- (v) presented for payment by or on behalf of a holder who would have been able to avoid such withholding or deduction by presenting the relevant Instrument, Receipt or Coupon to another Paying Agent in a Member State of the European Union.

As used in these Terms and Conditions:

- (i) "Tax Jurisdiction" means in the case of EDP, the Portuguese Republic or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax and, in the case of EDP B.V., The Netherlands or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax or in either case any other jurisdiction or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax in which EDP or, as the case may be, EDP B.V. becomes tax resident; and
- (ii) the "Relevant Date" means the date on which such payment first becomes due, except that, if the full amount of the moneys payable has not been duly received by the Issue and Paying Agent or the Trustee on or prior to such due date, it means the date on which, the full amount of such moneys having been so received, notice to that effect is duly given to the Holders in accordance with Condition 15.

9. Prescription

The Instruments (whether in bearer or registered form), Receipts and Coupons will become void unless presented for payment within a period of 10 years (in the case of principal) and five years (in the case of interest) after the Relevant Date (as defined in Condition 8) therefor.

There shall not be included in any Coupon sheet issued on exchange of a Talon any Coupon the claim for payment in respect of which would be void pursuant to this Condition or Condition 6 or any Talon which would be void pursuant to Condition 6.

10. Events of Default

The Trustee at its discretion may, and if so requested in writing by the Holders of at least one-quarter in nominal amount of the Instruments then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Holders of the Instruments shall (subject in each case to being indemnified to its satisfaction), give written notice to the Issuer that the Instruments are, and they shall accordingly thereupon immediately become, due and repayable at the Early Redemption Amount (as described in Condition 7.5), together with accrued interest (if any) as provided in the Trust Deed, if any one or more of the following events (each an "Event of Default") shall occur and is continuing:

- (i) the Issuer fails to pay any amount of principal or interest due in respect of the Instruments or any of them and the default continues for a period of seven days in the case of principal and 14 days in the case of interest; or
- (ii) the Issuer fails to perform or observe any of its other obligations under the Trust Deed or these Terms and Conditions or, if the Issuer is EDP B.V., EDP fails to perform or observe any of its obligations under the Trust Deed or these Terms and Conditions and (A) such failure is, in the opinion of the Trustee, incapable of remedy or in respect of which, in the opinion of the Trustee, remedial action satisfactory to the Trustee cannot be taken or (B) such failure is, in the opinion of the Trustee capable of remedy or in respect of which, in the opinion of the Trustee, such remedial action can be taken and the failure continues for the period of 30 days (or such longer period as the Trustee may permit) after the Trustee has given written notice to the Issuer requiring the same to be remedied; or
- (iii) any other Indebtedness of EDP B.V. (if EDP B.V. is the Issuer) or EDP or any Indebtedness of any Material Subsidiary becomes due and payable prior to the stated maturity thereof as a result of a default thereunder or any such Indebtedness is not paid at the maturity thereof or any guarantee or indemnity in respect of Indebtedness or performance given by any such company is not honoured when due and called upon or any

security interest, present or future, over the assets of any such company becomes enforceable provided that no such event in relation to such Indebtedness or any guarantee or indemnity in respect of such Indebtedness shall constitute an Event of Default unless the relative Indebtedness either alone or when aggregated with other Indebtedness relative to all (if any) other such events which shall have occurred shall amount to at least US\$50,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency) and provided further that, for the purposes of this Condition 10(iii), neither EDP B.V. nor EDP nor any Material Subsidiary shall be deemed to be in default with respect to such Indebtedness, guarantee or security interest until expiration of the applicable grace or remedy period, if any, or if the Trustee is satisfied that it shall be contesting in good faith by appropriate means its liability to make payment thereunder; or

- (iv) any steps are taken with a view to the liquidation or dissolution of EDP B.V. (if EDP B.V. is the Issuer), EDP or any Material Subsidiary, or EDP B.V. (if EDP B.V. is the Issuer), EDP or any Material Subsidiary becomes insolvent or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as and when the same fall due, or a receiver, liquidator or similar officer shall be appointed over all or any part of EDP B.V.'s (if EDP B.V. is the Issuer), EDP's or any Material Subsidiary's assets or an application shall be made for a moratorium or an arrangement with creditors of EDP B.V. (if EDP B.V. is the Issuer), EDP or any Material Subsidiary or proceedings shall be commenced in relation to EDP B.V. (if EDP B.V. is the Issuer), EDP or any Material Subsidiary under any legal reconstruction, readjustment of debts, dissolution or liquidation law or regulation, or a distress shall be levied or sued out upon all or any part of EDP B.V.'s (if EDP B.V. is the Issuer), EDP's or any Material Subsidiary's assets and shall remain undischarged for (60) days, or anything analogous to the foregoing shall occur under the laws of any applicable jurisdiction provided that no such event shall constitute an Event of Default if the Trustee is satisfied that it is being contested in good faith by appropriate means by EDP B.V. (if EDP B.V. is the Issuer), EDP or the relevant Material Subsidiary, as the case may be, and EDP or such Material Subsidiary or EDP B.V., as the case may be, has been advised by recognised independent legal advisers of good repute that it is reasonable to do so; or
- (v) save for the purposes of reorganisation on terms previously approved by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Holders, EDP B.V. (if EDP B.V. is the Issuer), EDP or any Material Subsidiary or EDP and the Material Subsidiaries (which for this purpose shall include EDP B.V. whether or not it is a Material Subsidiary at the relevant time) taken as a whole cease or threaten to cease to carry on the whole or a major part of the business conducted by it or them at the date on which agreement is reached to issue the first Tranche of the Instruments; or
- (vi) any authorisation, approval, consent, licence, decree, registration, publication, notarisation or other requirement of any governmental or public body or authority necessary to enable or permit EDP B.V. or EDP to comply with its obligations under the Instruments, the Trust Deed or the Keep Well Agreement or, if required for the validity or enforceability of any such obligations, is revoked, withdrawn or withheld or otherwise fails to remain in full force and effect or any law, decree or directive of any competent authority of or in The Netherlands or Portugal is enacted or issued which materially impairs the ability or right of EDP B.V. or EDP to perform such obligations; or
- (vii) EDP shall cease to own directly or indirectly more than 50 per cent. of the issued share capital or voting rights attached thereto or similar right of ownership in any Material Subsidiary or 100 per cent. of the issued share capital or voting rights attached thereto or similar right of ownership in EDP B.V. (if EDP B.V. is the Issuer) or EDP shall cease to have direct or indirect control of any Material Subsidiary or EDP B.V.; or
- (viii) the Keep Well Agreement is terminated or any provision of the Keep Well Agreement is amended or waived in circumstances where such amendment or waiver would have, in the opinion of the Trustee, an adverse effect on the interests of the Holders or is not enforced in a timely manner by EDP B.V. or is breached by EDP provided that in the case of such

non-enforcement or breach this has, in the opinion of the Trustee, an adverse effect on the interests of the Holders,

provided that, in the case of any Event of Default other than those described in paragraphs (i), (vi) and (vii) above, the Trustee shall have certified to the Issuer that, in its opinion, such Event of Default is materially prejudicial to the interests of the Holders.

In these Terms and Conditions:

"Group" means EDP and its Subsidiaries;

"Indebtedness" means, with respect to any person, any indebtedness or obligation (whether present or future, actual or contingent) created, issued, guaranteed, incurred or assumed by such person for money borrowed or raised;

"Material Subsidiary" means a Subsidiary:

- (a) whose operations include the generation and/or distribution of electricity in Portugal; and
- (b) (i) at any time whose total assets, as calculated from the then latest annual financial statements, audited if prepared, of that Subsidiary (consolidated in the case of a Subsidiary which itself has subsidiaries) represent not less than 5 per cent. (5%) of the total assets of the Group (as shown in the latest audited consolidated accounts of the Group); or
 - (ii) at any time whose revenues, as calculated from the then latest annual financial statements, audited if prepared, of that Subsidiary (consolidated in the case of a Subsidiary which itself has subsidiaries) represent not less than 5 per cent. (5%) of the consolidated revenues of the Group (as shown in the latest audited consolidated accounts of the Group).

A report by the directors of EDP that in their opinion, a Subsidiary is or is not, was or was not at any particular time a Material Subsidiary shall, in the absence of manifest error, be conclusive and binding on all parties. Such report may, if requested, be accompanied by a report from the Auditors (as defined in the Trust Deed) addressed to the directors of EDP as to the proper extraction of figures used by the directors of EDP in determining a Material Subsidiary and as to the mathematical accuracy of the calculations; and

"Subsidiary" means an entity from time to time of which EDP (a) has the right to appoint the majority of the members of the board of directors or similar board or (b) owns directly or indirectly more than 50 per cent. (50%) of the share capital or similar right of ownership.

11. Enforcement

The Trustee may, at its discretion and without further notice, take such proceedings against the Issuer as it may think fit to enforce the obligations of the Issuer under the Trust Deed and the Instruments and any relative Receipts or Coupons or the obligations of EDP under the Keep Well Agreement, but it shall not be bound to take any such proceedings or any other action unless (a) it shall have been so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Holders or so requested in writing by the Holders of at least one-quarter in nominal amount of the Instruments outstanding and (b) it shall have been indemnified to its satisfaction. No Holder shall be entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer or to take proceedings to enforce the Keep Well Agreement unless the Trustee, having become bound so to do, fails to do so within a reasonable period and such failure is continuing.

12. Replacement of Instruments, Receipts, Coupons and Talons

Should any Instrument, Receipt, Coupon or Talon be lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed, it may be replaced at the specified office of any Paying Agent upon payment by the claimant of such costs and expenses as may be incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to evidence and indemnity as the Issuer may reasonably require. Mutilated or defaced Instruments, Receipts, Coupons or Talons must be surrendered before replacements will be issued.

13. Paying Agents

The names of the initial Paying Agents and their initial specified offices are set out below.

The Issuer is entitled, with the prior written approval of the Trustee, to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent and/or appoint additional or other Paying Agents and/or approve any change in the specified office through which any Paying Agent acts, provided that:

- (a) there will at all times be an Issue and Paying Agent and, in respect of Registered Instruments, a Registrar;
- (b) so long as the Instruments are listed, traded and/or quoted by or on any listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system, there will at all times be a Paying Agent with a specified office in such place as may be required by the rules and regulations of the relevant listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system; and
- (c) the Issuer undertakes that it will ensure that it maintains a paying agent in a Member State of the European Union that is not obliged to withhold or deduct tax pursuant to European Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any other Directive implementing the conclusions of the ECOFIN Council meeting of November 26-27, 2000 or any law implementing or complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive.

In addition, the Issuer shall forthwith appoint a Paying Agent having a specified office in New York City in the circumstances described in Condition 6. Any variation, termination, appointment or change shall only take effect (other than in the case of insolvency, when it shall be of immediate effect) after not less than 30 nor more than 45 days' prior notice thereof shall have been given to the Holders in accordance with Condition 15.

In acting under the Agency Agreement, the Paying Agents act solely as agents of the Issuer and, in certain limited circumstances, of the Trustee and do not assume any obligation to, or relationship of agency or trust with, any Holders. The Agency Agreement contains provisions permitting any entity into which any Paying Agent is merged or converted or with which it is consolidated or to which it transfers all or substantially all of its assets to become the successor paying agent.

14. Exchange of Talons

On and after the Interest Payment Date on which the final Coupon comprised in any Coupon sheet matures, the Talon (if any) forming part of such Coupon sheet may be surrendered at the specified office of any Paying Agent in exchange for a further Coupon sheet including (if such further Coupon sheet does not include Coupons to (and including) the final date for the payment of interest due in respect of the Instrument to which it appertains) a further Talon, subject to the provisions of Condition 9.

15. Notices

- **15.1** Bearer Instruments: All notices regarding the Bearer Instruments will be deemed to be validly given if published in a leading English language daily newspaper of general circulation in London. It is expected that such publication will be made in the *Financial Times* in London. Any such notice will be deemed to have been given on the date of the first publication.
- 15.2 Notices to Holders of Registered Instruments: Notices to Holders of Registered Instruments will be deemed to be validly given if sent by first class mail (or equivalent) or (if posted to an overseas address) by air mail to them (or, in the case of joint Holders, to the first-named in the register kept by the Registrar) at their respective addresses as recorded in the register kept by the Registrar, and will be deemed to have been validly given on the fourth weekday after the date of such mailing or, if posted from another country, on the fifth such day.
- **15.3** *General:* The Issuer shall also ensure that notices are duly published in a manner which complies with the rules and regulations of any listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system on which the Instruments are for the time being listed, traded and/or quoted.
- **15.4** *Publication not practicable:* If publication as provided above is not practicable, notice will be given in such other manner, and will be deemed to have been given on such date, as the Trustee shall approve.

15.5 *Notices from Holders:* Notices to be given by any Holder shall be in writing and given by lodging the same, together with the relative Instrument or Instruments, with the Issue and Paying Agent.

16. Meetings of Holders, Modification and Waiver

The Trust Deed contains provisions for convening meetings of the Holders to consider any matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary Resolution of a modification of the Instruments, the Receipts, the Coupons or any of the provisions of the Trust Deed. Such a meeting may be convened by the Issuer or the Trustee or by Holders holding not less than 10 per cent. in nominal amount of the Instruments for the time being remaining outstanding. The quorum at any such meeting for passing an Extraordinary Resolution is one or more persons holding or representing more than 50 per cent. in nominal amount of the Instruments for the time being outstanding, or at any adjourned meeting one or more persons being or representing Holders whatever the nominal amount of the Instruments so held or represented, except that at any meeting the business of which includes the modification of certain provisions of the Instruments, the Receipts, the Coupons or the Trust Deed (including modifying the date of maturity of the Instruments or any date for payment of interest thereon, reducing or cancelling the amount of principal or the rate of interest payable in respect of the Instruments or altering the currency of payment of the Instruments, the Receipts or the Coupons), the quorum shall be one or more persons holding or representing not less than two-thirds in nominal amount of the Instruments for the time being outstanding, or at any adjourned such meeting one or more persons holding or representing not less than one-third in nominal amount of the Instruments for the time being outstanding. An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of the Holders shall be binding on all the Holders, whether or not they are present at the meeting.

The Trustee may agree, without the consent of the Holders, to:

- (a) any modification of the Instruments, the Receipts, the Coupons or the Trust Deed which is not, in the opinion of the Trustee, materially prejudicial to the interests of the Holders; or
- (b) any modification of the Instruments, the Receipts, the Coupons or the Trust Deed which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to correct a manifest error or to comply with mandatory provisions of the law.

The Trustee may also, without any consent as aforesaid, determine that any Event of Default or Potential Event of Default (as defined in the Trust Deed) shall not be treated as such which, in any such case, is not in the opinion of the Trustee, materially prejudicial to the interests of the Holders.

Any such modification, waiver, authorisation or determination shall be binding on the Holders and, unless the Trustee agrees otherwise, any such modification shall be notified to the Holders in accordance with Condition 15 as soon as practicable thereafter.

In connection with the exercise by it of any of its trusts, powers, authorities or discretions (including, without limitation, any modification, waiver, authorisation or determination), the Trustee shall have regard to the general interests of the Holders as a class but shall not have regard to any interests arising from circumstances particular to individual Holders (whatever their number) and, in particular, but without limitation, shall not have regard to the consequences of such exercise for individual Holders (whatever their number) resulting from their being for any purpose domiciled or resident in, or otherwise connected with, or subject to the jurisdiction of, any particular territory and the Trustee shall not be entitled to require, nor shall any Holder be entitled to claim, from the Issuer any indemnification or payment in respect of any tax consequence of any such exercise upon individual Holders except to the extent already provided for in Condition 8 and/or any undertakings given in addition thereto or in substitution therefor pursuant to the Trust Deed.

17. Further Issues

The Issuer shall be at liberty from time to time without the consent of the Holders to create and issue further Instruments having terms and conditions the same as the Instruments or the same in all respects save for the amount and date of the first payment of interest thereon and so that the same shall be consolidated and form a single Series with the outstanding Instruments. The Trust Deed contains

provisions for convening a single meeting of the Holders and the holders of instruments of other series in certain circumstances where the Trustee so decides.

18. Indemnification of Trustee

The Trust Deed contains provisions for the indemnification of the Trustee and for its relief from responsibility, including provisions relieving it from any obligation to take proceedings to enforce repayment unless indemnified to its satisfaction. The Trustee may enter into business transactions with the Issuer or any person or body corporate associated with the Issuer without accounting for any profit made or benefit received.

19. Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

No person shall have any right to enforce any term or condition of this Instrument under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.

20. Governing Law and Submission to Jurisdiction

- **20.1** Governing law: The Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement, the Keep Well Agreement, the Instruments, the Receipts and the Coupons are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law.
- 20.2 Submission to jurisdiction: Each of EDP B.V. and EDP has in the Trust Deed irrevocably and unconditionally agreed, for the exclusive benefit of the Trustee and the Holders, that the courts of England are to have jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may arise out of or in connection with the Trust Deed, the Instruments, the Receipts and/or the Coupons and that accordingly any suit, action or proceedings (together referred to as "Proceedings") arising out of or in connection with the Instruments, the Receipts and the Coupons may be brought in such courts.

Each of EDP B.V. and EDP has in the Trust Deed irrevocably and unconditionally waived any objection which it may have now or hereafter to the laying of the venue of any such Proceedings in any such court and any claim that any such Proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum and hereby further irrevocably agrees that a judgment in any such Proceedings brought in the English courts shall be conclusive and binding upon it and may be enforced in the courts of any other jurisdiction.

Nothing contained in this Condition shall limit any right to take Proceedings against EDP B.V. or EDP in any other court of competent jurisdiction, nor shall the taking of Proceedings in one or more jurisdictions preclude the taking of Proceedings in any other jurisdiction, whether concurrently or not.

- 20.3 Appointment of Process Agent: Each of EDP B.V. and EDP has in the Trust Deed appointed The Law Debenture Corporate Services Limited at its registered office for the time being (being at December 23, 2004 at Fifth Floor, 100 Wood Street, London EC2V 7EX) as its agent for service of process, and undertaken that, in the event of Law Debenture Corporate Services Limited ceasing so to act, it will appoint another person as its agent for service of process in England in respect of any Proceedings. Nothing herein shall affect the right to serve proceedings in any other manner permitted by law.
- **20.4** Other documents: Each of EDP and EDP B.V. has in the Agency Agreement and the Keep Well Agreement submitted to the jurisdiction of the English courts and appointed an agent for service of process in terms substantially similar to those set out above.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from each issue of Instruments will be applied by EDP for its general corporate purposes. The proceeds of Instruments issued by EDP B.V. will be on-lent to, or invested in, EDP Group companies.

PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE INSTRUMENTS WHILE IN GLOBAL FORM

Form of Instruments

(A) Relationship of Accountholders with Clearing Systems

Each of the persons shown in the records of Euroclear Bank, Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other clearing system as the holder of an Instrument represented by a Global Instrument (which expression includes a Temporary Global Instrument and a Permanent Global Instrument) must look solely to Euroclear Bank, Clearstream, Luxembourg or such other clearing system (as the case may be) for such person's share of each payment made by the Issuer to the bearer of such Global Instrument (or the registered holder of the Global Registered Instrument, as the case may be), and in relation to all other rights arising under the Global Instruments, subject to and in accordance with the respective rules and procedures of Euroclear Bank, Clearstream, Luxembourg or such clearing system (as the case may be). Such persons shall have no claim directly against the Issuer in respect of payments due on the Instruments for so long as the Instruments are represented by such Global Instrument or Global Registered Instrument and such obligations of the Issuer will be discharged by payment to the bearer of such Global Instrument (or the registered holder of the Global Registered Instrument, as the case may be), in respect of each amount so paid. References in these provisions relating to the Instruments in global form to "holder" or "accountholder" are to those persons shown in the records of the relevant clearing system as a holder of an Instrument.

(B) Form and Exchange - Bearer Global Instruments

(1) TEFRA D or TEFRA C: The Pricing Supplement shall specify whether U.S. Treasury Regulation §1.163-5(c)(2)(i)(D) (the "TEFRA D Rules") or U.S. Treasury Regulation §1.163-5(c)(2)(i)(C) (the "TEFRA C Rules") shall apply. Each Tranche of Bearer Instruments is represented upon issue by a temporary global Instrument (a "Temporary Global Instrument"), unless the Pricing Supplement specifies otherwise and the TEFRA C Rules apply.

Where the Pricing Supplement applicable to a Tranche of Bearer Instruments specifies that the TEFRA C Rules apply, such Tranche is (unless otherwise specified in the Pricing Supplement) represented upon issue by a Permanent Global Instrument.

Interests in a Temporary Global Instrument may be exchanged for:

- (i) interests in a permanent global Instrument (a "Permanent Global Instrument"); or
- (ii) if so specified in the Pricing Supplement, definitive Instruments in bearer form ("Definitive Instruments") and/or (if so specified in the Pricing Supplement) Registered Instruments.

Exchanges of interests in a Temporary Global Instrument for Definitive Instruments or, as the case may be, a Permanent Global Instrument will be made only on or after the Exchange Date (as specified in the Pricing Supplement) and (unless the Pricing Supplement specifies that the TEFRA C Rules are applicable to the Instruments) provided certification as to the beneficial ownership thereof as required by U.S. Treasury regulations (in substantially the form set out in the Trust Deed or in such other form as is customarily issued in such circumstances by the relevant clearing system) has been received. An exchange for Registered Instruments will be made at any time or from such date as may be specified in the Pricing Supplement, in each case, without any requirement for certification.

(2) Limitation on entitlement under a Temporary Global Instrument after Exchange Date: Holders of interests in any Temporary Global Instrument shall not (unless, upon due presentation of such Temporary Global Instrument for exchange (in whole but not in part only) for a Permanent Global Instrument or for delivery of Definitive Instruments and/or Registered Instruments, such exchange or delivery is improperly withheld or refused and such withholding or refusal is continuing at the relevant payment date) be entitled to receive any payment in respect of the Instruments represented by such Temporary Global

- Instrument which falls due on or after the Exchange Date or be entitled to exercise any option on a date after the Exchange Date.
- (3) Certification of non-U.S. beneficial ownership: Unless the Pricing Supplement specifies that the TEFRA C Rules are applicable to the Instruments and subject to paragraph (2) above, if any date on which a payment of interest is due on the Instruments of a Tranche occurs whilst any of the Instruments of that Tranche are represented by a Temporary Global Instrument, the related interest payment will be made on the Temporary Global Instrument only to the extent that certification as to the beneficial ownership thereof as required by U.S. Treasury regulations (in substantially the form set out in the Trust Deed or in such other form as is customarily issued in such circumstances by the relevant clearing system) has been received by Euroclear Bank or Clearstream, Luxembourg, or any other relevant clearing system which may be specified in the Pricing Supplement. Payments of amounts due in respect of a Permanent Global Instrument or (subject to paragraph (2) above) a Temporary Global Instrument (if the Pricing Supplement specifies that the TEFRA C Rules are applicable to the Instruments) will be made through Euroclear Bank or Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other relevant clearing system without any requirement for certification.
- (4) Exchange for Definitive Instruments: Interests in a Permanent Global Instrument will be exchanged (subject to the period allowed for delivery as set out in (i) below), in whole but not in part only and at the request of the Holder of such Global Instrument, for Definitive Instruments and/or (if so specified in the Pricing Supplement) Registered Instruments, (a) if Euroclear Bank or Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other relevant clearing system is closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of legal holidays) or announces an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and, in any such case, no successor clearing system satisfactory to the Trustee is available, or (b) an Event of Default (as defined in Condition 10) occurs or (c) on 60 days' notice given at any time on the request of the bearer, if so specified in the Pricing Supplement. The circumstances described in (a) and (b) are each herein referred to as an "Exchange Event". Whenever a Permanent Global Instrument is to be exchanged for Definitive Instruments and/or Registered Instruments, the Issuer shall procure the prompt delivery of such Definitive Instruments and/or Registered Instruments, duly authenticated and where and to the extent applicable, with Coupons and Talons attached (each as defined in Condition 1.2), in an aggregate nominal amount equal to the nominal amount of such Permanent Global Instrument to the Holder of the Permanent Global Instrument against its surrender at the specified office of the Issue and Paying Agent within 30 days of the Holder requesting such exchange.

(C) Form of Exchange – Global Registered Instruments

- (1) Global Registered Instrument: Registered Instruments held in Euroclear Bank and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (or other clearing system) will be represented by a Global Registered Instrument which will be registered in the name of a nominee for, and deposited with, a common depositary for Euroclear Bank and Clearstream, Luxembourg (or such other relevant clearing system).
- (2) Exchange: The Global Registered Instrument will become exchangeable in whole, but not in part, for individual Registered Instruments if (a) Euroclear Bank or Clearstream, Luxembourg is closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of legal holidays) or announces an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and, in any such case no successor clearing system satisfactory to the Trustee is available, (b) an Event of Default occurs, or (c) on 60 days' notice given at any time at the request of the registered Holder, if so specified in the Pricing Supplement. The circumstances described in (a) and (b) are each herein referred to as an "Exchange Event".

Whenever the Global Registered Instrument is to be exchanged for Registered Instruments, such Registered Instruments will be issued in an aggregate nominal amount

equal to the nominal amount of the Global Registered Instrument within five business days of the delivery, by or on behalf of the registered Holder of the Global Registered Instrument, Euroclear Bank and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, to the Registrar or the Transfer Agent (as the case may be) of such information as is required to complete and deliver such Registered Instruments (including, without limitation, the names and addresses of the persons in whose names the Registered Instruments are to be registered and the nominal amount of each such person's holding) against the surrender of the Global Registered Instrument at the specified office of the Registrar or the Transfer Agent (as the case may be). Such exchange will be effected in accordance with the provisions of the Agency Agreement and the regulations concerning the transfer and registration of Instruments scheduled thereto and, in particular, shall be effected without charge to any Holder, but against such indemnity as the Registrar or the Transfer Agent (as the case may be) may require in respect of any tax or other duty of whatsoever nature which may be levied or imposed in connection with such exchange.

(D) Amendment to Conditions

The Temporary Global Instruments, Permanent Global Instruments and Global Registered Instruments contain provisions that apply to the instruments that they represent, some of which modify the effect of the Terms and Conditions of the Instruments set out in this Information Memorandum. The following is a summary of certain of those provisions:

- (1) Meetings: The holder of a Permanent Global Instrument or of the Instruments represented by a Global Registered Instrument shall (unless such Permanent Global Instrument or Global Registered Instrument represents only one Instrument) be treated as having one vote in respect of each minimum Specified Denomination of Instruments for which such Global Instrument may be exchanged.
- (2) Cancellation: Cancellation of any Instrument represented by a Permanent Global Instrument or Global Registered Instrument that is required by the Conditions to be cancelled (other than upon its redemption) will be effected by reduction in the nominal amount of the relevant Permanent Global Instrument or Global Registered Instrument.
- (3) Purchase: Instruments represented by a Permanent Global Instrument or Global Registered Instrument may only be purchased by the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries if they are purchased together with the rights to receive all future payments of interest and Instalment Amounts (if any) thereon.
- (4) Issuer's Options: Any option of the Issuer provided for in the Conditions of the Instruments while such Instruments are represented by a Permanent Global Instrument or a Global Registered Instrument shall be exercised by the Issuer giving notice to the holders within the time limits set out in and containing the information required by the Conditions, except that the notice shall not be required to contain the serial numbers of Instruments drawn in the case of a partial exercise of an option and accordingly no drawing of Instruments shall be required. In the event that any option of the Issuer is exercised in respect of some but not all of the Instruments of any Series, the rights of accountholders with a clearing system in respect of the Instruments will be governed by the standard procedures of Euroclear Bank, Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other clearing system (as the case may be).
- (5) Holders' Options: Any option of the holders provided for in the Conditions of any Instruments while such instruments are represented by a Permanent Global Instrument or a Global Registered Instrument may be exercised by the Holder of such Permanent Global Instrument or Global Registered Instrument, giving notice to the Issue and Paying Agent within the time limits relating to the deposit of Instruments with a Paying Agent or the Registrar, in the case of a Global Registered Instrument substantially in the form of the notice available from any Paying Agent (or the Registrar, in the case of a Global Registered Instrument), except that the notice shall not be required to contain the serial numbers of the Instruments in respect of which the option has been exercised, and stating the nominal amount of Instruments in respect of which the option is exercised and at the

- same time presenting for notation the Permanent Global Instrument or the Global Registered Instrument to the Issue and Paying Agent, or to a Paying Agent acting on behalf of the Issue and Paying Agent, or the Registrar, in the case of a Global Registered Instrument.
- (6) Notices: So long as any Instruments are represented by a Permanent Global Instrument or Global Registered Instrument and such Permanent Global Instrument or Global Registered Instrument is held on behalf of a clearing system, (i) notices to the Holders of Instruments of that Series may be given by delivery of the relevant notice to the clearing system for communication by it to entitled accountholders in substitution for publication as required by the Conditions and any such notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Holders on the fourth weekday after the date on which it is given to the clearing system and (ii) notices to be given by any Holder may be given to the Issue and Paying Agent through Euroclear Bank and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, in such manner as the Issue and Paying Agent and Euroclear Bank and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, may approve for this purpose.

(E) Partly Paid Instruments

While any Partly Paid Instalments due from the holder of Partly Paid Instruments are overdue, no interest in a Temporary Global Instruments or Registered Global Instrument representing such Instruments may be exchanged for an interest in a Permanent Global Instrument or for Definitive Instruments or a Registered Instrument (as the case may be). If any holder fails to pay any instalment due on any Partly Paid Instruments within the time specified, the Issuer may forfeit such Instruments and shall have no further obligation to such holder in respect of them.

FORM OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT

Set out below is the form of Pricing Supplement which will be completed for each Tranche of Instruments issued under the Programme.

[Date]

[EDP - ENERGIAS DE PORTUGAL, S.A./EDP FINANCE B.V.]

Issue of

[Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Instruments]

under the €5,000,000,000 Programme for Issuance of Debt Instruments

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement relating to the issue of Instruments described herein.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the Information Memorandum dated []. This Pricing Supplement contains the final terms of the Instrument, and must be read in conjunction with such Information Memorandum.

[The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued under an Information Memorandum with an earlier date.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the "Conditions") set forth in the Information Memorandum dated [original date]. This Pricing Supplement contains the final terms of the Instruments and must be read in conjunction with the Information Memorandum dated [current date], save in respect of the Conditions which are extracted from the Information Memorandum dated [original date] and are attached hereto.]

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not Applicable" (N/A). Note that the numbering should remain as set out below, even if "Not Applicable" is indicated for individual paragraphs or sub-paragraphs. Italics denote directions for completing the Pricing Supplement.]

[If the Instruments have a maturity of less than one year from the date of their issue, the minimum denomination may need to be £100,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.]

1.	Issuer:	[EDP – Energias de Portugal, S.A./EDP Finance B.V.]
2.	[(i)] Series Number:[(ii) Tranche Number:	[] [] (If fungible with an existing Series, details of that Series, including the date on which the Instruments become fungible)]
3.	Specified Currency or Currencie	es: []
4.	Aggregate Nominal Amount: - Tranche: - Series:	[]
5.	(i) Issue Price of Tranche:	[] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus accrued interest from [insert date] (in the case of fungible issues only, if applicable)]
	(ii) [Net proceeds:	[] (Required only for listed issues)]
6.	Specified Denominations:	[] []

7.	[(i)	Issue Date:	
	(ii)	Interest Commencement Date (if different from the Issue Date):	
8.	Maturity Date:		[Fixed rate - specify date/Floating rate - Interest Payment Date falling in or nearest to [specify month]]
9.	Intere	est Basis:	[[] per cent. Fixed Rate] [[LIBOR/EURIBOR] +/- [] per cent. Floating Rate] [Zero Coupon] [Index Linked Interest] [Dual Currency Interest] [specify other] (further particulars specified below)
10.	Redemption/Payment Basis:		[Redemption at par] [Index Linked Redemption] [Dual Currency Redemption] [Partly Paid] [Instalment] [specify other]
11.	Change of Interest Basis or Redemption/ Payment Basis:		[Specify details of any provision for change of Instruments into another Interest Basis or Redemption/Payment Basis]
12.	Put/Call Options:		[Investor Put] [Issuer Call] [(further particulars specified below)]
13.	Listing:		[London/specify other/None]
14.	Metho	od of distribution:	[Syndicated/Non-syndicated]
PRO	VISIO	NS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF	ANY) PAYABLE
15.	Fixed	Rate Instrument Provisions	[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph)
	(i)	Rate[(s)] of Interest:	[] per cent. per annum [payable [annually/semi-annually/quarterly] in arrear] (If payable other than annually, consider amending Condition 5)
	(ii)	Interest Payment Date(s):	[[] in each year up to and including the Maturity Date]/specify other] (N.B. This will need to be amended in the case of long or short coupons)
	(iii)	Fixed Coupon Amount(s):	[] per [] in nominal amount
	(iv)	Broken Amount(s):	[Insert particulars of any initial or final broken interest amounts which do not correspond with the Fixed Coupon Amount]
	(v)	Day Count Fraction:	[30/360 or Actual/Actual (ISMA) or specify other] (NB: if interest is not payable on a regular basis (for example, if there are Broken Amounts specified) Actual/Actual (ISMA) may not be a suitable Day Count Fraction)

(vi)	Determination Date(s):	[Insert interest payment dates except where there are long or short periods. In these cases, insert regular interest payment dates] (N.B. This will need to be amended in the case of regular interest payment dates which are not of equal duration) (NB: Only relevant where Day Count Fraction is
(vii)	Other terms relating to the method of calculating interest for Fixed Rate Instruments:	Actual/Actual (ISMA)) [None/Give details]
Float	ing Rate Instrument Provisions	[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph)
(i)	Specified Period(s)/Specified Interest Payment Dates:	
(ii)	Business Day Convention:	[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day Convention/Modified Following Business Day Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/[specify other]]
(iii)	Additional Business Centre(s):	
(iv)	Manner in which the Rate of Interest and Interest Amount is to be determined:	[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/specify other]
(v)	Party responsible for calculating the Rate of Interest and Interest Amount (if not the Issue and Paying Agent):	
(vi)	Screen Rate Determination:	
	- Reference Rate:	[] (Either LIBOR, EURIBOR or other, although additional information is required if other – including fallback provisions in the Agency Agreement)
	- Interest Determination Date(s):	[] (Second London business day prior to the start of each Interest Period if LIBOR (other than sterling or euro LIBOR), first day of each Interest Period if sterling LIBOR and the second day on which the TARGET System is open prior to the start of each Interest Period if EURIBOR or euro LIBOR)
	- Relevant Screen Page:	[] (In the case of EURIBOR, if not Telerate Page 248 ensure it is a page which shows a composite rate or amend the fallback provisions appropriately)
(vii)	ISDA Determination:	
	- Floating Rate Option:	[]
	- Designated Maturity:	[]
	- Reset Date:	[]
(viii)	Margin(s):	[+/-] [] per cent. per annum

16.

	(ix)	Minimum Rate of Interest:	[] per cent. per annum
	(x)	Maximum Rate of Interest:	[] per cent. per annum
	(xi)	Day Count Fraction:	[Actual/365/Actual/Actual – (ISDA) Actual/365 (Fixed) Actual/365 (Sterling) Actual/360 30/360 30E/360 Other] (See Condition 5 for alternatives)
	(xii)	Fall back provisions, rounding provisions and any other terms relating to the method of calculating interest on Floating Rate Instruments, if different from those set out in the Conditions:	
17.	Zero	Coupon Instrument Provisions	[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph)
	(i)	Accrual Yield:	[] per cent. per annum
	(ii)	Reference Price:	[]
	(iii)	Any other formula/basis of determining amount payable:	
	(iv)	Day Count Fraction in relation to Early Redemption Amounts and late payment:	[Conditions 7.5 and 7.10 apply/specify other] (Consider applicable day count fraction if not U.S. dollar denominated)
18.	Index	Linked Instrument Provisions	[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)
	(i)	Index/Formula:	[give or annex details]
	(ii)	Calculation Agent responsible for calculating the principal and/or interest due:	[]
	(iii)	Provisions for determining Coupon where calculation by reference to Index and/or Formula is impossible or impracticable:	
	(iv)	Specified Period(s)/Specified Interest Payment Dates:	
	(v)	Business Day Convention:	[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day Convention/Modified Following Business Day Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/specify other]
	(vi)	Additional Business Centre(s):	[]
	(vii)	Minimum Rate of Interest:	[] per cent. per annum
	(viii)	Maximum Rate of Interest:	per cent. per annum
	(ix)	Day Count Fraction:	[]

19.	Dual	Currency Instrument Provisions	[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph)
	(i)	Rate of Exchange/method of calculating Rate of Exchange:	[give details]
	(ii)	Calculation Agent, if any, responsible for calculating the principal and/or interest payable:	
	(iii)	Provisions applicable where calculation by reference to Rate of Exchange impossible or impracticable:	
	(iv)	Person at whose option Specified Currency(ies) is/are payable:	
PRO	VISION	NS RELATING TO REDEMPTION	N
20.	20. Issuer Call:		[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph)
	(i)	Optional Redemption Date:	
	(ii)	Optional Redemption Amount of each Instrument and method, if any, of calculation of such amount(s):	[] per Instrument of [] Specified Denomination
	(iii)	If redeemable in part:	
		(a) Minimum Redemption Amount:	
		(b) Higher Redemption Amount:	
	(iv)	Notice period (if other than as set out in the Conditions):	[] (N.B. If setting notice periods which are different to those provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is advised to consider the practicalities of distribution of information through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other notice requirements which may apply, for example, as between the Issuer and the Agent or Trustee)
21.	21. Investor Put:		[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph)
	(i)	Optional Redemption Date:	[]
	(ii)	Optional Redemption Amount of each Instrument and method, if any, of calculation of such amount(s):	[] per Instrument of [] Specified Denomination

(iii) Notice period (if other than as set out in the Conditions):

(N.B. If setting notice periods which are different to those provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is advised to consider the practicalities of distribution of information through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems and custodians, as well as any other notice requirements which may apply, for example, as between the Issuer and the Agent or Trustee)

22. Final Redemption Amount of each Instrument:

[[] per Instrument of [] Specified Denomination/specify other/see Appendix]

23. Early Redemption Amount of each Instrument payable on redemption for taxation reasons or on event of default and/or the method of calculating the same (if required or if different from that set out in Condition 7.5):

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE INSTRUMENTS

24. Form of Instruments:

[Temporary Global Instrument exchangeable for a Permanent Global Instrument which is exchangeable for definitive Bearer Instruments and/or Registered Instruments [on 60 days' notice given at any time/only upon an Exchange Event]].

[Temporary Global Instrument exchangeable for definitive Bearer Instruments and/or Registered Instruments on and after the Exchange Date.]

[Permanent Global Instrument exchangeable for definitive Bearer Instruments and/or Registered Instruments [on 60 days' notice given at any time/only upon an Exchange Event]]

[Global Registered Instrument (U.S.\$[]] nominal amount (*specify nominal amount*)) exchangeable for Registered Instruments [on 60 days' notice given at any time/only upon an Exchange Event]]

25. Additional Financial Centre(s) or other special provisions relating to Payment Dates:

[Not Applicable/give details]

(Note that this item relates to the place of payment and not Interest Period end dates to which item 16(iii) and 18(vi) relate)

26. Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to be attached to definitive Bearer Instruments (and dates on which such Talons mature): [Yes/No. If yes, give details]

27. Details relating to Partly Paid
Instruments: amount of each payment
comprising the Issue Price and date on
which each payment is to be made and
consequences of failure to pay, including
any right of the Issuer to forfeit the
Instruments and interest due on late
payment:

[Not Applicable/give details. NB: a new form of Temporary Global Instrument and/or Permanent Global Instrument may be required for Partly Paid issues]

28.	Instr	ils relating to Instaliuments:		[Not	Appliachlo/cive detaile]		
	(i) (ii)	Instalment Amous Instalment Date(s			Applicable/give details] Applicable/give details]		
29.	Rede	enomination applica	ble:	[(if Re	nomination [not] applicable dedenomination is applicable, specify the terms of redenomination in an Annex to the Pricing lement)]		
30. DIS T	Othe	er terms or special co	onditions:	[Not A	Applicable/give details]		
31.	(i) (ii)	If syndicated, nam Stabilising Manag	_	-	Applicable/give names] Applicable/give name]		
32.	If no Deal	n-syndicated, name er:	of relevant	[]		
33.	appli	ther TEFRA D or T cable or TEFRA ru cable:		[TEFI	[TEFRA D/TEFRA C/TEFRA not applicable]		
34.	Additional selling restrictions:			[Not Applicable/give details]			
OPE	RATIO	ONAL INFORMAT	TION				
35.	Any clearing system(s) other than Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme and the relevant identification number(s):		[Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]				
36.	Deliv	very:		Delivery [against/free of] payment			
37.	Addi	itional Paying Agent	t(s) (if any):	[]		
	ISIN	:	[]			
	Com	mon Code	[]			
This admi	Pricing tted to d securi ergias	listing on the Offic	ial List and to tra €5,000,000,000 Pr	ading or ogramn	ed for the Instruments described herein to be on the London Stock Exchange plc's market for me for the Issuance of Debt Instruments of EDP		
The	Issuer a	accepts responsibilit	y for the informa	tion cor	ntained in this Pricing Supplement.		
Signe	ed on b	behalf of the Issuer:					
Ву:		Duly authorised					

RELATIONSHIP OF EDP B.V. WITH EDP

EDP has entered into a Keep Well Agreement dated March 14, 2001 with EDP B.V. (the "Keep Well Agreement") governed by English law. The following is the text of the Keep Well Agreement:

"KEEP WELL AGREEMENT

This Keep Well Agreement is made on March 14, 2001 by and between:

- (1) EDP ELECTRICIDADE DE PORTUGAL, S.A. ("EDP"); and
- (2) EDP FINANCE B.V. ("EDP B.V.").

WHEREAS:

- (A) EDP B.V. is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of EDP;
- (B) Bankers Trustee Company Limited (the "Trustee", which expression shall wherever the context so admits include any successor as trustee for holders of the Instruments as defined below), EDP and EDP B.V. (each an "Issuer" and together the "Issuers") have entered into a trust deed dated March 14, 2001 (the "Trust Deed") relating to the €5,000,000,000 Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments (the "Programme");
- (C) The Issuers may issue Instruments after the date hereof pursuant to the Programme (the "Instruments", which expression as used herein shall include Instruments whether in global or definitive form and any receipts, coupons or talons appertaining to such Instruments) which will be constituted by the Trust Deed as modified and/or supplemented and/or restated from time to time;
- (D) EDP B.V. may also hereafter assume from time to time obligations under swap agreements which will be related to the Instruments issued by EDP B.V. (any obligation of EDP B.V. in respect of each swap agreement entered into by EDP B.V. and any Instrument issued by EDP B.V. under the Programme being herein referred to as a "Debt Obligation" and the obligations together being herein referred to as "Debt Obligations"); and
- (E) EDP B.V. entered into the Programme as Issuer for its own benefit and also for the benefit of EDP.

NOW, THEREFORE, EDP and EDP B.V. hereby covenant and agree as follows:

- 1. In consideration of the sum of £1 paid by EDP B.V. to EDP (receipt of which EDP hereby acknowledges), EDP shall own, directly or indirectly, all of the issued and outstanding share capital of EDP B.V. and will control the composition of the board of directors of EDP B.V. so long as any Debt Obligation is outstanding and shall not pledge, grant a security interest in, encumber or alienate any of such share capital.
- 2. For so long as EDP B.V. has outstanding Instruments under the Programme, EDP shall, with effect on and from the date of this Agreement, cause EDP B.V. to maintain a Tangible Net Worth (as hereinafter defined), as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in The Netherlands applied on a consistent basis as shown on EDP B.V.'s most recent audited balance sheet (commencing with EDP B.V.'s audited balance sheet at December 31, 2001), of at least one euro.
 - "Tangible Net Worth" shall mean the total assets of EDP B.V. less the sum of intangible assets and total liabilities of EDP B.V. A certificate of the auditors of EDP B.V. as to the amount of Tangible Net Worth shall, in the absence of manifest error, be final and conclusive.
- 3. For so long as EDP B.V. has outstanding Instruments under the Programme, if EDP B.V. at any time shall have insufficient funds or other liquid assets to meet its payment obligations (including in respect of any Debt Obligations) or to repay borrowings then maturing or subsequently to mature, upon receipt of notice from EDP B.V. to such effect, EDP shall make, or have made, available to EDP B.V., before the due date of such payment obligations or borrowings, funds sufficient to enable EDP B.V. to meet such payment obligations or to repay such borrowings, as

- the case may be, in full as they fall due. EDP B.V. shall use the funds made available to it by EDP hereunder solely for the fulfilment of its payment obligations and the repayment at maturity of its borrowings.
- 4. Any and all funds from time to time provided by EDP to EDP B.V. pursuant to Clause 3 above shall, at the option of EDP, be either (1) by way of subscription for and payment of share capital (other than redeemable share capital) of EDP B.V., or (2) by way of subordinated loan, that is to say, a loan which, and interest on which, is not permitted to be, and is not capable of being, repaid or paid unless all other debt of EDP B.V. has been fully satisfied and is subordinated on a winding-up of EDP B.V. to all of the unsecured and unpreferred creditors of EDP B.V. other than EDP.
- 5. EDP warrants and agrees that its payment obligations which may arise hereunder constitute unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of EDP and rank *pari passu* with all other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of EDP other than those obligations which are preferred by law.
- 6. This Agreement is not, and nothing herein contained and nothing done by EDP pursuant hereto shall be deemed to constitute, a guarantee, direct or indirect, by EDP of any Debt Obligation or any other debt of EDP B.V. (or of any subsidiary of EDP B.V.) or of any instrument issued by EDP B.V. or of any subsidiary of EDP B.V.
- 7. If EDP B.V. shall be in liquidation, administration or receivership or other analogous proceedings (including if EDP B.V. is declared bankrupt ("faillissement") or is granted a moratorium of payment ("surséance van betaling") or enters into winding-up proceedings ("ontbinding")) and EDP shall be in default of its obligations hereunder, EDP shall be liable to EDP B.V. by way of liquidated damages for such default in an amount equal to the sum that EDP would have paid had it performed in full all of its obligations hereunder, and EDP B.V. and any liquidator, administrator or receiver of EDP B.V. or other analogous officer or official shall be entitled to claim accordingly.
- 8. This Agreement may be modified, amended or terminated only by the written agreement of EDP and EDP B.V. provided, however, that no such modification, amendment or termination shall be made which may have any adverse effect upon the holders of the Instruments issued by EDP B.V. or the holders of any other Debt Obligation taken as a whole while any such Instrument or Debt Obligation is outstanding.
- 9. EDP and EDP B.V. each hereby covenant and agree as follows:
 - (i) it will not consent, either orally or in writing, to any modification, amendment or termination of this Agreement which may have any adverse effect upon the holders of the Instruments issued by EDP B.V. or the holders of any other Debt Obligation taken as a whole while any Instrument or other Debt Obligation remains outstanding;
 - (ii) it will give written notice to the Trustee on behalf of the holders of Instruments issued by EDP B.V. and to the holders of any other Debt Obligation at least 30 days prior to any proposed modification, amendment or termination of this Agreement;
 - (iii) it will fully and promptly perform its obligations and exercise its rights under this Agreement and, in the case of EDP B.V., (without limitation to the foregoing) exercise its right to enforce performance of the terms of this Agreement by EDP; and
 - (iv) it will consent to the giving of an order of specific performance or similar relief by any court of competent jurisdiction in the event that any action is brought in respect of this Agreement.
- 10. (i) This Agreement shall take effect for the benefit of the Trustee on behalf of the holders of Instruments issued by EDP B.V. and the holder of any other Debt Obligation. Apart from the parties to this Agreement and the Trustee, no other person, firm, company or association (unincorporated or incorporated) shall be entitled to any benefit under this Agreement whatsoever.
 - (ii) This Agreement shall be deposited with and held by the Trustee for so long as the Trust Deed is in force and, if thereafter, any other Debt Obligation remains outstanding it will be

- deposited with and held by a reputable financial institution on behalf of the holder(s) of such other Debt Obligation. Both parties hereby acknowledge the right of the holder of any Instrument issued by EDP B.V. and any other Debt Obligation to obtain from either party a copy of this Agreement.
- (iii) The term "holder" herein has the same meaning in relation to each Instrument as the term "Holder" in the Terms and Conditions of such Instrument.
- 11. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
- 12. Each of EDP and EDP B.V. hereby irrevocably agrees that the courts of England are to have jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may arise out of or in connection with this Agreement and that accordingly any suit, action or proceedings (together "Proceedings") arising out of or in connection with this Agreement may be brought in such courts. Each of EDP and EDP B.V. hereby irrevocably waives any objection which it may have to the laying of the venue of any Proceedings in any such courts and any claim that any such Proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum and hereby further irrevocably agree that a judgment in any Proceedings brought in the English courts shall be conclusive and binding upon EDP and EDP B.V. and may be enforced in the courts of any other jurisdiction. Nothing contained herein shall limit any right to take Proceedings against EDP or EDP B.V. in any other court of competent jurisdiction nor shall the taking of Proceedings in one or more jurisdictions preclude the taking of Proceedings in any other jurisdiction, whether concurrently or not. Each of EDP and EDP B.V. hereby appoints The Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c. at its registered office for the time being (being at the date hereof at Fifth Floor, 100 Wood Street, London EC2V 7EX) as its agent for service of process and agrees that, in the event of The Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c. ceasing so to act, it will appoint another person as its agent for service of process in England in respect of any Proceedings.
- 13. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of England."

Note:

The Keep Well Agreement is not, and should not be regarded as equivalent to, a guarantee by EDP of any payment in respect of the Instruments. However, following an Event of Default, the Trustee will be entitled, on behalf of the Holders, to enforce EDP B.V.'s rights under the Keep Well Agreement against EDP in accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed. Enforcement in the English courts will be subject, among other things, to the powers of such courts to stay proceedings and other principles of law and equity of general application.

CAPITALISATION OF EDP - ENERGIAS DE PORTUGAL, S.A

The table below sets forth the unaudited consolidated capitalisation and indebtedness of EDP in accordance with Portuguese GAAP as of June 30, 2004.

	As of June 30, 2004
	(in millions of EUR)
Short term debt and current portion of medium and long term debt	1,649.1
Medium and long term debt: Bonds Bank Loans	3,513.4 2,197.4
Total medium and long term debt	5,810.8
Shareholders' equity: Authorised and issued share capital (nominal value of shares). Treasury stock Reserves and retained earnings Consolidated net profit	3,000.0 (55.6) 2,144.9 274.9
Total Shareholders' equity	5,364.2
Total capitalisation	12,824.1

- (1) As at June 30, 2004 EDP's issued and fully paid share capital consisted of 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares with a nominal value of EUR 1 each.
- (2) As at June 30, 2004 no undertaking within the EDP Group, either individually or collectively, had any guarantees or other contingent liabilities outside the EDP Group, which were material in the context of the EDP Group.
- (3) As at June 30, 2004 all the indebtedness of the EDP Group was unsecured, and the EUR 5.7 million of the total medium and long term debt of EDP Group was guaranteed.
- (4) A share capital increase of Euro 656,537,715 of EDP Energias de Portugal, S.A. was registered with the Commercial Register in December 3, 2004, through the issuance of 656,537,715 Shares at the price of Euro 1.84 per Share, which represent a Share premium of Euro 0.84 per Share (in the total amount of EUR 551,491,681). As a result, the shareholders' equity of EDP increased by EUR 1,208,029,396.
- (5) Except as disclosed above, there has been no material change to the consolidated capitalisation and indebtedness, contingent liabilities or guarantees of EDP since June 30, 2004.

EDP GROUP

OVERVIEW

EDP – Energias de Portugal, S.A. (formerly EDP – Electricidade de Portugal S.A.) ("EDP") is a company (sociedade anónima) established in Portugal as a public enterprise in 1976 by Decree-Law 502/76 of June 30, 1976 as a result of the nationalisation and merger of the principal Portuguese companies in the electricity sector in mainland Portugal and transformed by Decree-Law No. 7/91 of January 8, 1991 and Decree-Law 78-A/97 of April 7, 1997. EDP is a vertically integrated electric utility company and the largest generator and distributor of electricity in Portugal. In addition, EDP owns 30 per cent. of REN-Rede Eléctrica Nacional, S.A. ("REN"), the sole transmitter of electricity in Portugal and has significant electricity operations in Spain and Brazil.

EDP's registered Head Office is located at Praça Marquês de Pombal, no. 12, 1250-162 Lisbon, Portugal.

Upon the privatisation of EDP's share capital, which has already involved five phases commencing in 1997, the latest of which is still being executed, EDP is currently approximately 20.5 per cent. owned, directly or indirectly, by the Portuguese Republic. In addition 4.85 per cent. of EDP's shares are owned by Caixa Geral de Depósitos, a state-owned bank. Other significant shareholders include Banco Comercial Português, S.A ("BCP") (5.05 per cent.), Iberdrola, S.A (5 per cent.) and Brisa – Autoestradas de Portugal, S.A ("Brisa") (2 per cent, indirectly).

EDP underwent a restructuring in 1994, at which time subsidiaries were formed to operate in the areas of electricity generation, transmission and distribution. At the date of this Information Memorandum, EDP's two principal subsidiaries are its electrical generation company, CPPE – Companhia Portuguesa de Produção de Electricidade, S.A. ("CPPE"), and its distribution company, EDP Distribuição de Energia, S.A. ("EDPD"), EDPD was formed in early 2000 by the merger of EDP's four wholly owned distribution companies. These two wholly owned subsidiaries carry out EDP's electricity generation and distribution activities in Portugal. On March 29, 2001, EDP announced the formation of EDP – Gestão da Produção de Energia, S.A. (also known as EDP Produção), a subsidiary that began operations in July 2001 and now holds most of our Portuguese energy production related units as part of measures we are implementing to improve our organisational efficiency.

EDP and its subsidiaries (together, the "EDP Group") operate in a highly regulated environment. The primary factors affecting EDP Group's operating performance are (i) the level of demand for electricity in Portugal, which is directly related to the general level of economic activity in the country; (ii) the tariffs that the EDP Group is permitted to charge for electricity, which are governed by regulation, and (iii) the level of operating costs, which consist primarily of depreciation and amortisation, fuel costs and costs of purchased electricity, wages and salaries.

In addition to its operations in Portugal, in 2001, EDP acquired a 40 per cent. interest in Hidroeléctrica Del Cantábrico ("Hidrocantábrico"), which operates electricity generation plants, distributes and supplies electricity and gas mainly in the Asturias and Basque regions of Spain. With the creation of a single Iberian electricity market and EDP's defined core business being its operations in the energy sector in Iberia, Hidrocantábrico was identified as an independent Spanish utility company whose acquisition could ease EDP's entrance into the Spanish energy market. From June 2002, EDP consolidated, on a proportional basis, 40 per cent. of Hidrocantábrico, becoming the first utility company with strategically important assets on both sides of the border. Following this strategy, Hidrocantábrico acquired 62 per cent. of Naturcorp, the second largest gas distribution and transmission company in the Spanish market. By December 16, 2004 we expect to acquire an additional 56.2 per cent. stake in Hidrocantábrico, thereby bringing our total interest in it to 95.7 per cent..

EDP is also present in Brazil, focusing in the electricity production and distribution businesses. EDP's strategy is mainly focused in Empresa Bandeirante de Energice, S.A. ("Bandeirante"), Esquito Saute Centrais Electricas ("Escelsa") and Empresa Energética de Mate Grosse do sul, S.A. ("Enersul"), as well as in the Peixe Angical Hydro project through the holding company EDP Brasil, S.A. ("EDP Brasil").

During 2003, EDP decided that the Brazilian companies within the EDP Group should be self-financed instead of depending on EDP for financing, in order to limit EDP's risk to the Brazilian market and currency. With this objective, EDP decided to restructure its company shareholdings in Brazil with EDP Brasil becoming a holding company for the Group's assets in that country.

MARKET AND REGULATION

Portugal

In 1995, Portugal established the National Electricity System, which consists of the "Public Electricity System" (including a "Binding Sector") and the "Independent Electricity System".

The Public Electricity System is responsible for ensuring the security of electricity supply within Portugal and is obliged to supply electricity to any consumer who requests the service. The Binding Sector includes EDP's generation company CPPE, the transmission company REN, EDP's distribution company EDPD, as well as two independent power producers: Tejo's Energia's plant at Pego, in which EDP has a 10 per cent. stake and the Turbogás plant at Tapada do Outeiro, in which EDP has a 20 per cent. stake. All plants in the Public Electricity System enter into Power Purchase Agreements ("PPAs") with REN through which they commit to provide electricity exclusively to the Public Electricity System through REN, acting as the single buyer in the Binding Sector and operator of the national transmission grid.

The Independent Electricity System, consists of two parts: (i) the Non-Binding Sector, which at present includes, as producers only, EDP's three wholly-owned embedded hydroelectric plants (over 10 MW of installed capacity); and (ii) the other independent producers, which include auto-producers (entities that generate electricity for their own use), co-generators, small hydroelectric producers (under 10 MW installed capacity) and producers using renewable energy sources.

REN is required by law to purchase excess electricity produced by independent producers at a regulated price. Conversely, the Non-Binding Sector is a market-based system that permits "Qualifying Consumers" to choose their electricity supplier. Over the past several years, the minimum consumption level required to be a "Qualifying Consumer" has progressively declined and, as of May 15, 2003, "Eligible Consumers", (i.e., all consumers (other than low-voltage consumers)), automatically become "Qualifying Consumers" after communicating their intention to the regulator to be treated as such. The full liberalisation of the electricity market is expected to be completed in July 2004 with the opening of the market to all low-voltage consumers.

Until 1998, the Portuguese government, through the Department for Trade and Competition ("DGCC") and the Department of Energy ("DGE"), was responsible for the development, execution and evaluation of the policy for the energy sector, notably by presenting proposals for necessary legislation and regulation. In February 1997, Entidade Reguladora do Sistema Eléctrico ("ERSE") was appointed as the regulator.

ERSE sets tariffs for the Binding Sector and access charges for the Non-Binding Sector. In the Binding Sector, distribution tariffs for customers are differentiated by voltage level, tariff option and period of electricity consumption. These tariffs, when set, are uniform throughout mainland Portugal within each level of voltage, subject to specified exceptions based on volume.

Tariffs

The prices EDP charges for electricity are subject to extensive regulation. Currently, the overall electricity tariff comprises charges for generation, transmission and distribution, which includes physical distribution and commercial supply.

Prior to 1999, regulation of tariffs was based on annual negotiations between EDP and the government. In December 1998, ERSE implemented a new tariff regulatory code to be applied in mainland Portugal, establishing a three-year periodic definition of regulatory parameters for tariffs and a methodology for setting tariffs.

During the first regulatory period (1999 to 2001) and the second regulatory period (2002 to 2004), prices have been set annually according to a series of formulae that were derived primarily upon what was

deemed to be an appropriate return on assets in transmission, a return fixed by price cap in distribution, and a return on assets and agreed costs in commercialisation (i.e., the activity of supply measurement and billing of energy sales to final clients).

For the second regulatory period (2002-2004), ERSE has applied a four-rate tariff price structure related to the time of day applicable to medium, high and very high-voltage consumers. ERSE introduced some changes mainly in the distribution business – splitting the regulation of the distribution wires, wires commercialisation and Binding Sector commercialisation. ERSE also introduced some adjustments on the structure of the tariffs, both for the published tariffs to final customers and access tariffs by non-Binding Sector agents, with the intention of introducing more transparency in the system and avoiding cross-subsidies between customers.

In real terms, adjusted for inflation, both high and medium-voltage distribution tariffs in the Binding Sector, generally applicable to industrial customers, have declined by a yearly average of approximately 6.0 per cent. over the period from 1998 to 2003. The distribution tariffs in the Binding Sector for low-voltage customers, typically residential, have also declined in real terms by an average of approximately 3.3 per cent. over the same period. In real terms, adjusted for inflation, very high, high and medium-voltage tariffs have declined by an average of 3.4 per cent. over the period 1999 to 2004. The tariffs for low-voltage customers have also declined by an average of approximately 3.1 per cent. over the same period. In 2003, in nominal terms, distribution tariffs in the Binding Sector for all voltage levels increased by an average of 2.8 per cent. from the 2002 levels. For 2004, in nominal terms, tariffs increased across all voltage levels by an average of 2.1 per cent. from the 2003 levels.

Generation

Generation revenues were not affected by the new regulation, as power is sold by CPPE and other plants in the Binding Sector under PPAs that allow these plants to achieve a return on assets of 8.5 per cent. in real terms.

The price of electricity provided for in each PPA consists of the capacity and energy charges, which account for 95 per cent. of PPA costs, together with costs associated with imports, auto production and generation facilities. The capacity and energy charges have been, and continue to be, passed through to the final tariff paid by customers in the Binding Sector.

Spain

The two major characteristics of the Spanish electricity sector are the existence of the wholesale Spanish generation market (also referred to as the Spanish pool), and the fact that any consumer has been free to choose its supplier since January 1, 2003.

Generation facilities in Spain operate either in the "ordinary regime" or the "special regime". The electricity system must acquire all electricity offered by "special regime" generators, which comprise small or renewable energy facilities, at tariffs fixed by decree law that vary depending on the type of generation and are generally higher than Spanish prices. "Ordinary regime" generators provide electricity to the Spanish pool and under bilateral contracts to qualified consumers and liberalised suppliers at market prices.

Companies with the capability to sell and buy electricity may participate in the Spanish pool. Electricity generators sell electricity to the pool. The regulated electricity distributors or suppliers in the liberalised or unregulated market and consumers that are permitted to participate in the pool, or qualified consumers, buy electricity in this pool. Foreign companies or consumers that have foreign agent status may also sell and buy in the Spanish pool.

The market operator and agency responsible for the market's economic management and bidding process is Compania Operadora del Mercado Espanol de Electricidad ("OMEL").

In addition to selling electricity to regulated consumers (customers that are subject to a regulated final tariff and are not qualified consumers), transmission companies and regulated distributors must provide network access to all qualified consumers that have chosen to be supplied in the liberalised market. However, qualified consumers must pay an access tariff to the distribution companies if such access is provided.

Liberalised suppliers are free to set a price to qualified consumers. These entities' main direct activity costs are the wholesale market price and the regulated access tariffs to be paid to the distribution companies. Electricity generators and liberalised suppliers or qualified consumers may also engage in bilateral contracts without participating in the wholesale market.

Tariffs

At the beginning of each year, the Spanish government sets both the access and final tariffs. In December 2002, the Spanish government established a new calculation method for the 2003-2010 period, which allows tariffs to be fixed under more objective, transparent and predictable conditions. Tariffs cannot be increased by more than 2 per cent. annually and electricity companies may recover the losses (known as "deficit tarifarios" or "rate deficits") caused by the reduction of tariffs during the 2000-2002 period. The cumulative rate of reduction in nominal terms for all Spanish customers from 1996-2003 was 15.7 per cent. in nominal terms and 32.6 per cent. in real terms. The fixed tariff for 2004 increased by an average of 1.72 per cent. on the 2003 average tariff (or reference tariff, which includes all applicable tariffs and costs).

Under some of the provisions of the new regulatory scheme, electricity transmission and distribution activities will continue to be regulated since their particular characteristics impose severe limitations on the possibility of introducing competition. However, the new regulatory framework changed the manner in which electricity businesses receive payments, in order to promote efficiency and quality of service.

The regulations take into account the investment and operational costs related to transmission activities. Fixed remuneration for distribution is based on investment, operational and maintenance costs. They also take distribution areas, incentives for supply quality, loss reduction and commercial management costs into account.

Iberian Electricity Market

On November 14, 2001, in accordance with the liberalisation objectives contained in EU Directive 96/92/EC, the Portuguese and Spanish governments signed a "Protocol for Cooperation between the Spanish and Portuguese governments for the Creation of the Iberian Electricity Market ("MIBEL")", which is intended to:

- guarantee consumers in Portugal and Spain access to the electricity network from either country and to interconnections with third countries on equal terms; and
- give electricity operators in the Iberian electricity market the freedom to contract with consumers, to engage in distribution activities in both countries and to participate in a common Iberian electricity pool.

Although MIBEL was expected to come into force by January 2003, the Portuguese and Spanish governments at the October 2002 Valencia summit established a new schedule for MIBEL's implementation. The agreed timetable contemplated implementation in phases, beginning in January 2003 and ending in 2006. The delay was mainly due to the change in the Portuguese government and to the need for the harmonisation of the Spanish tariff structure. According to the proposal presented at the Valencia Summit, it is expected that the new model will function with only one operator divided into two specialised establishments with separate management: one in Portugal operating the forward market for electricity and one in Spain operating the daily and intra-daily market for electricity. There will be only one wholesale energy market working in parallel with bilateral contracts.

Within the context of MIBEL, the changes introduced to the Portuguese energy policy in April 2003 resulted in the redefinition by the Portuguese government's of its main objectives in the energy sector. These objectives included, among others: the liberalisation of the market, improvement of the quality of service, security of supply and reinforcement of the productivity of the national economy. The Portuguese government has indicated its intention to proceed with the restructuring of the Portuguese electricity system, via the implementation of various measures (i) terminating the existing PPAs by means of adequate compensation mechanisms and, (ii) changing REN's single buyer status. As a result, Decree law no. 185/2003 of August 20, 2003 contemplates the early termination of PPAs according to specific

rules to be defined in a subsequent decree law. This future decree law is expected to define indemnification measures so as to compensate the investments and commitments provided for in each PPA. It is also expected that both Portugal and Spain should take all necessary measures to open the market to all consumers and harmonise both tariff structures through clear and transparent rules. This is particularly the case in Spain.

During the Figueira da Foz summit of November 8, 2003, the Portuguese and Spanish governments executed a memorandum of understanding that established a new timeframe for and agreed on specific issues relating to the creation of MIBEL:

- Implementation of operating mechanisms governing the working of the two "pools" of the market and their integration;
- Harmonisation of regulations applicable to the spot and forward electricity markets in Portugal and Spain;
- Termination of the majority of PPAs in Portugal by the start date of the integrated operation of MIBEL; and
- Institutionalisation of the Iberian Regulatory Board, including representatives of the two regulators, whose purpose will be to resolve conflicts and to control the working of the markets within the scope of their common responsibilities.

On January 20, 2004, both governments entered into a more detailed agreement known as the international agreement (the "International Agreement"), which was approved by the Portuguese Parliament under Resolution no. 33-A/2004 of April 20, 2004 and ratified by the President of the Republic of Portugal under Decree law no. 19-B/2004 of April 20, 2004. The International Agreement creates an Iberian electricity market designated as MIBEL, and is intended to constitute a milestone in the process of integration of the electricity markets of both countries.

Under the International Agreement, MIBEL will operate with a spot market, which includes daily and intra-daily markets and will initially be managed by the current market operator of the Spanish market (OMEL), and a forward market, which will initially be managed by a market operator located in Portugal (OMIP). In addition, electricity transactions may also be negotiated by bilateral contracts with a term not less than one year. The International Agreement also clarifies that the existence of two market operators, OMEL and OMIP, is temporary. By April 20, 2006, it is expected that both market operators will merge and create a single market operator designated as the Iberian Market Operator (Operador do Mercado Ibérico).

On October 1, 2004 the Portuguese and the Spanish governments met at the Iberian summit, held in Santiago de Compostela and decided to delay the commencement of MIBEL until June 30, 2005.

STRATEGY

Primary strategic focus on core energy activities in the Iberian Peninsula

EDP's primary strategic focus is the Iberian energy market. EDP is the leading electricity company in Portugal and has operating control of Hidrocantábrico, the fourth largest electricity company in Spain. In Hidrocantábrico, EDP maintains a successful partnership with Energie Baden-Wuerttemberg AG ("EnBW"), a German utility company, and Caja de Ahorros de Asturias ("Cajastur") as well as Caja de Seguros Reunidos ("Cáser"), two Spanish savings banks. Together, EDP and Hidrocantábrico have a significant share of generation capacity of energy and distribution supply in the Iberian market.

In March 2003, Hidrocantábrico acquired 62 per cent. of Naturcorp Gas Co ("Naturcorp"), the second largest Spanish gas distribution and transmission company. Hidrocantábrico currently holds 56.8 per cent. of Naturcorp after Gas Natural exchanged its 50 per cent. stake in Gas de Euskadi, a subsidiary of Naturcorp, for a direct interest in Naturcorp.

EDP intends to develop activities in the Portuguese gas sector by exchanging its financial investment in GALP into a controlling stake in GDP. In order to achieve this, in February 2004 EDP reached a framework agreement with ENI for the control of Portugal's natural gas business in February 2004, in which EDP holds 51 per cent. of GDP and ENI holds the remaining 49 per cent..

EDP's objectives in the Iberian energy market are: (i) to preserve the value of the domestic electricity business in light of the liberalisation of the Portuguese electricity market and the creation of an integrated Iberian market; (ii) to expand its electricity Iberian platform through Hidrocantábrico and (iii) to develop an iberian gas business by leveraging on its existing assets.

Preserving the value of the core domestic electricity business

EDP in its domestic electricity business faces increasing competition arising from the liberalisation of the electricity market in Portugal, in the Iberian Peninsula and throughout the EU. It was expected that the Portuguese electricity market would be liberalised by July 2004, allowing all customers to freely choose their electricity supplier, but this was delayed. The liberalisation will increase competition in electricity supply and additionally there will be increasing pressure on operating margins due to this competition and the regulation of tariffs in the Public Electricity System.

In response to these challenges EDP's strategy is to:

- continue its efforts to enhance earnings and maintain its leading market share of generation and distribution in the liberalised and growing Portuguese electricity market, while also capitalising on growth opportunities created by increasing liberalisation within the EU; and
- increase the efficiency of Portuguese electricity operations, reduce related costs to achieve international best practice standards, and minimise the impact of tariff reductions in the current regulatory period on operating margins of EDP's electricity distribution business.
 - In pursuing these objectives, EDP intends to:
- pursue effective marketing to both new and existing customers, particularly those that benefit, or will benefit, from competitive alternatives in the Non-Binding Sector (where EDP is present through its subsidiary EDP Energia);
- continue to provide high quality and cost-effective services to the Binding Sector and the Non-Binding Sector;
- further centralise its corporate structure, as has been done with the merger of four distribution companies into EDPD and the centralisation of most of EDP's generation companies in EDP Produção;
- continue to centralise and improve the efficiency of EDP's administrative activities, such as accounting, and procurement, with the aim of achieving cost savings in supplies of goods and services and personnel reduction. EDP Valor a company that integrates some of EDP's service companies by consolidating resources and centralising purchasing activities was created for this purpose;
- identify opportunities to achieve future reductions in overhead expenses through the continued implementation of the "Efficiency Program" started at the beginning of 2002; and
- continue to monitor the level of recurring capital expenditures in EDP's Portuguese electricity business.

Growing its Iberian electricity platform

In light of the intended integration of the Spanish and Portuguese electricity sectors, EDP has expanded the definition of its domestic market to embrace the entire Iberian Peninsula. Following the acquisition of a 39.5 per cent. interest in Hidrocantábrico at the end of 2001, EDP also became the first Iberian company to own a meaningful customer base in both Portugal and Spain – countries with the highest electricity consumption growth rates in the European Union.

In order to fulfill its strategy, EDP intends to:

- position itself to benefit from the creation of an Iberian electricity market and pursue growth opportunities in Spain by leveraging on the investment in Hidrocantábrico;
- grow its customer base by capitalising on the fully liberalised electricity market in Spain;

- take advantage of a combined electricity and gas service offering in Spain through the activities of both Hidrocantábrico and Naturcorp and in Portugal through the activities of EDP and GDP; and
- increase generation capacity through the construction of a new CCGT power plant, the development of renewable energy generation projects, primarily through the construction or acquisition of new wind farms, and the increase of capacity in existing plants to cope with strong consumption growth.

Developing an Iberian gas strategy

EDP considers the gas business as being highly complementary to electricity and of great strategic attractiveness. Both Portugal and Spain have gas and electricity consumption growth rates above the EU average. Both countries require new capacity to be gradually added and CCGT plants, fired by gas, are considered to be an advantageous option to meet the Iberian electricity system expansion requirements. This is due to the lower investment costs required per MW, their greater efficiency, lower operating and maintenance costs and lower emission levels compared to other thermal generation plants. Since new gas-fired generation capacity is expected to be added to the Iberian electricity system, power generators, which are already among the largest gas consumers in the Iberian Peninsula, are and will continue to be the facilitators of the development and sustainability of the gas business in the Iberian Peninsula. The natural gas market is characterised by the existence of long-term contracts, that are usually indexed to the price of oil, and which are of a take-or-pay nature and restrict the final destination of contracted gas.

EDP wants to develop an integrated Iberian gas strategy for two main reasons:

- to capture synergies from distributing both gas and electricity to consumers by leveraging its electricity client base and sharing the infrastructure and operational costs; and
- to increase the competitiveness and efficiency of EDP's gas fired power plants. By being involved in both gas distribution and electricity generation, it is possible to mitigate the risk presented by variable gas prices while increasing the flexibility of gas sourcing and placing.

In April 2003, the Portuguese government announced recommendations concerning the reorganisation of the energy sector. This provided the opportunity for EDP to become a major participant in the Iberian combined electricity and gas sector. According to these government recommendations, gas and electricity in Portugal should be combined and developed by EDP in order to take advantage of the synergies and flexibility that will result from the integrated management of these activities.

In March 2004, EDP entered into an agreement to purchase, together with Eni and REN, the entire share capital of GDP. GDP operates in the Portuguese gas sector and owns assets for the transport and distribution of gas. The completion of the agreement and related transactions is subject to specified conditions, including approval of the relevant competition authorities. Pursuant to this agreement, EDP, Eni and REN will initially hold 33.34 per cent., 33.33 per cent. and 33.33 per cent., respectively, of GDP's share capital. REN will only participate in GDP temporarily and intends to sell its interest as soon as a sale can be arranged.

The agreement provides that the cost of the stake of each buyer will be €400 million. In relation to the purchase agreement, EDP also entered into a shareholders' agreement with Eni and REN that establishes the temporary governance of GDP (until the exit of REN) and the mechanism by which REN will exchange its stake in GDP for GDP's high-pressure gas network assets.

Following the exit of REN, EDP and Eni will own 51 per cent. and 49 per cent. of GDP, respectively. Accordingly, EDP also entered into a shareholders' agreement with Eni that will govern the management of GDP upon the exit of REN and includes exit clauses in the case of a deadlock event that cannot be resolved.

As EDP intends to leverage the stake in GALP to acquire its position in GDP and focus on the gas business rather than oil-related activities, EDP also agreed with Parpública − Participações Públicas, S.G.P.S., S.A.("Parpública"), on a mechanism for EDP to exit the share capital of GALP. Pursuant to this agreement, Parpública has a call option to acquire EDP's 14.27 per cent. stake in GALP for €456.7 million and EDP has a put option to sell its stake in GALP to Parpública on the same terms.

International activities

EDP's international investments are focused primarily in Brazil, where it believes it can play an active role in managing electricity operations and where potential returns may be attractive. During the first half of 2003, EDP reassessed its strategy for Brazil and is undertaking the following initiatives with the goal of rationalising its Brazilian operations by making them more self-sustaining and independently managed:

- corporate restructuring: integration of all activities in Brazil under its subsidiary, EDP Brasil. This will not only consolidate financial results but also planning and strategic control;
- capital restructuring: assessment of the capital structure of EDP Brasil and its subsidiaries;
- corporate governance: harmonisation and alignment of the corporate governance structures and procedures of EDP Brasil's subsidiaries, with a view toward improving the efficiency and transparency of governance and the decision-making process;
- strategic positioning: introduction of the necessary adjustments to our existing investments with the aim of obtaining greater added value for shareholders. EDP Brasil aims to establish strategic platforms for the development of future businesses; and
- generation of synergies: ensuring that EDP Brasil is worth more than the sum of its parts. This would provide adequate remuneration of capital employed, through the establishment of initiatives such as the re-launch of an efficiency program and analysis of the feasibility of shared services.

EDP regularly reviews its international investments and may change its focus consistent with its strategic objectives.

Telecommunications

EDP's telecommunications activities are conducted through ONI S.G.P.S., S.A. ("ONI"), a fixed-line telecommunications operator, that provides voice and data services at a significant level in Portugal and Spain. ONI and is primarily focused on corporate clients. EDP plans to build on its existing operations in order to pursue a competitive role in the corporate fixed-line telecommunications sector in Portugal and Spain, which are regarded as attractive markets of suitable size with high growth potential. EDP based its decision to enter and develop this business on its ability to capitalise on existing infrastructure, including access to an extensive fibre optic network, to leverage its existing resources, (including a large base of customers and suppliers), and to use its existing telecommunications and information technology operations as a foundation for expanded activities.

Although EDP's plans and strategy continue to evolve and adapt to trends in the telecommunications sector, EDP currently anticipates enhancing the following business areas:

- fixed-line operations, using ONI's fixed-line voice and data operations as a platform; and
- Internet access services, building on ONI's Internet service provider activities.

EDP is seeking to ally itself with other partners who may bring resources and synergies to facilitate its efforts to develop a presence in each of these business areas.

Information Technology

EDP is involved in the information technology sector mainly through Edinfor – Sortemas Informáticos, S.A. ("EDINFOR"). During the second half of 2003, and following a decision to seek a strategic partner in EDINFOR's share capital to invest, EDP has been implementing several initiatives that will facilitate the success of a future partnership. Such initiatives include improving the relationship between EDINFOR and the EDP Group, increasing sales outside the EDP Group and winding up and/or merging 17 companies of the EDINFOR group.

In 2004, EDP expects to conclude the process of finding a strategic partner for EDINFOR that will provide EDINFOR with technological expertise. In any eventual partnership entered into, EDP will seek to ensure that its core information technology systems continue to be run by EDINFOR. With such a partnership in place, EDP expects to be better positional to focus on its core business, while maintaining the availability and security of key systems, and enhancing EDINFOR's growth potential.

BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Electricity (Portugal)

Historically, electricity has been EDP's core business. As the largest producer and distributor of electricity in Portugal, the EDP Group currently holds the leading position in the Portuguese domestic electricity market. In 2003, the EDP Group accounted for approximately 82 per cent. of the installed generation capacity in the Public Electricity System and 99 per cent. of the distribution in the Public Electricity System.

EDP Group's 2003 operating revenues amounted to €6,977.5 million, approximately 92 per cent. of which derived principally from electricity sales, yielding operating income of €905.7 million. As at December 31, 2003, EDP Group's total assets were €18,650.7 million, and shareholders' equity was €5,298.0.2 million.

The EDP Group had 17,664 employees as at December 31, 2003.

Generation

In its generation function, the EDP Group creates power for consumption in both the Public Electricity System and the Independent Electricity System. In 2003, EDP Group's generating facilities had a total maximum capacity of 7,940 MW, approximately 53 per cent. of which was represented by hydroelectric facilities, 28 per cent. by fuel oil/natural gas facilities, 15 per cent. by coal-fired facilities, 2 per cent. by gas oil facilities and 2 per cent. by wind-driven, cogeneration and biomass facilities. The EDP Group does not own or operate any nuclear-powered facilities in Portugal.

Distribution

In its distribution function, EDPD carries out approximately 99.99 per cent. of Portugal's local electricity distribution. In 2003, EDPD provided more than 5.7 million customers with 38,916 GWh of electricity. Under the terms of binding licenses, EDPD must supply electricity to all customers in the Public Electricity System. EDPD must also provide access to the distribution network to producers in the Independent Electricity System.

Spain (Hidrocantábrico)

In December 2001, EDP, EnBW, Cajastur and Cáser, concluded the acquisition of Hidrocantábrico. The EC Merger Task Force approved the transaction in early March 2002, conditional upon the de-listing of Hidrocantábrico, which was completed in June 2002.

Hidrocantábrico is the fourth largest vertically integrated utility in Spain, with 2,820 MW of generating capacity. Its geographical market is in the north of Spain, mainly in Asturias. Its share of the eligible market is estimated at about 7 per cent. Apart from electricity, the company is also involved in natural gas distribution.

Hidrocantábrico's installed capacity represents 5.5 per cent. of Spain's generation capacity. In 2003, it had a total installed capacity of 2,820 MW, 56.9 per cent. of which from coal-fired facilities, 13.9 per cent. from a CCGT (Combined Cycle Gas Turbine) facility, 16.1 per cent. from hydroelectric facilities, 1.3 per cent. from co-generation facilities and 5.9 per cent. from renewable energy facilities. Hidrocantábrico also holds a 15.5 per cent. interest in the Trillo nuclear power plant which accounts for 165 MW of the plant's total installed capacity of 1,066 MW.

The amount of energy distributed in 2003 through Hidrocantábrico's own network totalled 8,659 GWh, which represents an increase of 3.4 per cent. comparing to 2002 levels. As at December 2003, Hidrocantábrico had 561,208 customers, a 2.2 per cent. increase from 2002.

The gas supplied to the regulated market in 2003 amounted to 4,370 GWh, representing a 199 per cent. increase from 2002. Additionally, the volume of gas distributed in the liberalised market reached 5,257 GWh. The total number of gas consumers connected to the distribution network increased from 157,051 to 542,794 in 2003, mainly due to the acquisition of Naturcorp, which added 372,364 customers. Hidrocantabrico's gas distribution activities revenues totalled €157 million in 2003 compared with €55.6 million in 2002.

The energy supply activity performed by Hidrocantábrico Energia, S.A.U. includes the supply of electricity to qualified consumers and to liberalised clients. It was supplied and invoiced for 4,712 GWh of electricity, which represents 6.5 per cent. of the liberalised market and more than 74 per cent. of clients from outside of its traditional market. In 2002, Hidrocantábrico Energia began its natural gas supply service and supplied 5,711 GWh of gas.

Telecommunications

In March 2000, EDP announced a strategic decision to pursue the telecommunications business, which provided an opportunity to leverage its existing resources and expertise and to build on its initiatives in the telecommunications and information technology businesses. At that time, EDP held a 25 per cent. stake in Optimus, S.A. ("Optimus"), Portugal's third largest mobile operator, and had, on January 1, 2000, launched the fixed-line operations of ONI Telecom, S.G.P.S., S.A. ("ONI Telecom"). The current shareholder structure in ONI, is as follows: EDP 56 per cent., BCP 22.8 per cent., Brisa 17 per cent. and GALP Energia 4.2 per cent.

On June 12, 2001, EDP announced ONI's acquisition of Comunitel, a Spanish telecommunications operator with a portfolio of products and services directed to small and medium size enterprises, enabling ONI to offer "one-stop-shopping" to the growing number of companies operating in both Portugal and Spain.

In March 2002, EDP sold 100 per cent. of OPTEP, (the subsidiary through which it indirectly held 25.49 per cent. of Optimus), to Thorn Finance SA ("Thorn") for €315 million. EDP was required to sell its stake in Optimus in order to comply with Portuguese regulatory requirements, as both Optimus and EDP's then subsidiary ONI Way Infocomunicaçõs, S.A. ("ONI Way") were each awarded a UMTS license in late 2000. EDP no longer holds any shares in Optimus, directly or indirectly, although the agreement with Thorn gives EDP a right of first refusal to purchase the shares sold if Thorn reaches an agreement to sell the shares to a third party.

In late 2002, ONI Way decided to significantly reduce its activity and proposed to its shareholders to decide whether the UMTS project should be temporarily frozen or terminated, due to several adverse economic, financial, technical and regulatory reasons. In order to optimise shareholder value, ONI Way entered into agreements with Telecomunicações Móveis Nacionais, Vodafone-Telecel (now known as Vodafone Portugal) and Optimus under which ONI Way had the option to sell to those companies a substantial part of its assets. In addition, it was also agreed to enter into put and call options to sell to Vodafone-Telecel the entire share capital of ONI Way.

On January 6, 2003, a 72 per cent. majority of the shareholders of ONI Way decided against ONI Way's UMTS project and confirmed and approved the resolutions of the board of directors in this regard. Subsequently, ONI Way's UMTS license was revoked on January 13, 2003 by the Minister of Economy, with the consent of ONI Way. ONI Way subsequently entered into arrangements with the majority of its employees, and, since December 31, 2003, has no longer been party to any employment contracts. In addition, ONI Way has terminated its distribution agreements and settled its commitments with suppliers.

In November 2003, the ONI Way put option was exercised and in February 2004 ONI Way's entire share capital was sold to Vodafone Portugal.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, ONI had revenues of €331.1 million, of which services provided to the EDP Group amounted to €15.3 million, and an operating loss of €68.7 million, compared with the year ended December 31, 2002, where ONI had revenues of €320.8 million, of which services provided to the EDP Group amounted to €13 million, and an operating loss of €154.8 million.

In early 2004, ONI became the owner of 99.98 per cent. of Germinus XXI, or Germinus, an "incubator" company developing services in the market where telecommunications, media, hardware and software converge. The Germinus group offers services in four activities: applications and technological platforms, professional services, information services and network business.

International Investments

EDP has made a number of international investments in the electricity sector in Brazil, Cabo Verde, Guatemala and Macao. EDP expects that its international investments will continue to be focused

on Latin America, particularly in Brazil. As at the date of this Information Memorandum, no new international investment projects were initiated and, in accordance with EDP's strategy of shareholder value creation, it has divested in non-strategic holdings in Chile and Morocco.

EDP operations in Brazil consist of generation, distribution and related activities. EDP distribution companies in Brazil, namely Bandeirante, Escelsa, Enersul, served more than 2.9 million customers and distributed 21,424 GWh.

In 2003, Bandeirante sold 9,593 GWh, a 6 per cent. decrease form 2002. This was due to the falls in demand of the industrial segment. Taking into account electricity distributed to liberalised customers, who pay Bandeirante a fee for the use of its distribution grid, Bandeirante distributed 11,380 GWH in 2003, representing an increase of 4.2 per cent. from 2002. Bandeirante's tariffs were adjusted so as to increase 18.08 per cent. over the period from 2004-2008. Escelsa's total electricity sales volume was 5,900 GWh, representing a 7 per cent. decrease from 2002. Including electricity distributed to liberalised customers, Escelsa distributed 7,187 GWh, which is an 11 per cent. increase from the previous year. In August 2003 Agéucia National de Energia Eléctrica ("ANEEL") approved a tariff readjustment for Escelsa, resulting in an increase of 17.3 per cent. Enersul's total energy sales volume for 2003 was 2,816 GWh, which represents a 2 per cent. increase from 2002. Including the electricity distributed to liberalised costumers, Enersul distributed 2,857 GWh in 2003, Enersul's tariffs were also readjusted suffering an increase approved by ANEEL of 42.26 per cent.

Recent material changes to EDP's portfolio of international investments include:

- In March 2002, EDP reached an agreement with Compagnie Génerale des Eaux regarding the sale of a 29 per cent. stake in Redal, S.A ("Redal"), a Moroccan company and concessionaire of the water and electricity supply to the city of Rabat, for €26.7 million.
- In October 2002, EDP gained management control of Escelsa and of Enersul, two Brazilian distributors.
- EDP recommenced construction of the Hydroelectric Plant of Peixe Angical after Furnas Centrais Elétricas, S.A, a subsidiary of Eletrobrás, S.A entered in the share capital of the project. Now, EDP currently owns 59 per cent. of the share capital of Peixe Angical, Furnas holds 40 per cent. and Grupo Rede 1 per cent.

Recent developments

- In March 2003 EDP issued a 10-year Bond, via a private placement, for the total amount of €150 million, maturing on the 26 March, 2013, at an interest rate of Euribor + 0.50 per cent. per year. This bond was issued in order to refinance short-term debt.
- In August 2003 the Regulator ERSE accepted EDPD's proposal of a Plan for Rationalisation of Human Resources, allowing EDPD to take the incurred costs with the Group's restructuring as an amortising investment for the period of 20 years.
- In September 2003 EDP sold its stake in Iberdrola S.A. in two separate transactions. First it disposed of, 1.11 per cent. of Iberdrola's shares for an amount of €153.9 million and then sold the remainder 1.89 per cent. for the amount of €246.2 million. EDP no longer holds any shares of Iberdrola, S.A.
- In July 2004 EDP announced its intention to acquire the stakes of EnBW and Cajastur in Hidrocantabrico in August, 2004, increasing its participation in Hidrocantabrico from 39.5 per cent. to 95.7 per cent. The total amount involved in this transaction will be €1,195 million. It will include a total cash amount of €649 million for EnBW's entire stake (35 per cent.), a share exchange for the Cajastur stake (17.5 per cent.), worth €453 million in EDP shares (equivalent to 5.4 per cent. to 5.8 per cent.) of its share capital and the acquisition of the 4.1 per cent. Cáser stake for €93 million, to be paid in cash. With this transaction, EDP becomes a major player in the Iberian utility sector, implementing its business strategy through the optimisation of both companies' portfolios. Cajastur will strengthen its partnership with EDP. The operation will be financed through a share capital increase by means of a rights issue for the amount of €1,200 million, through the issue of new shares to EDP shareholders.

MANAGEMENT

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors, together with the executive officers of EDP manages EDP's affairs and monitors the daily operation of the activities of EDP in accordance with Portuguese law and EDP's Articles of Association. Executive officers are in charge of various administrative departments of EDP and report directly to the Board of Directors of EDP. The operating companies within the EDP Group are managed by their respective Boards of Directors.

The members of the Board of Directors of EDP, their principal current and past affiliations and certain other information are set forth below:

Name	Age	Position	Year Originally Elected
Mr. Francisco de la Fuente Sánchez	62	Chairman	2000
Mr. João Ramalho Talone	52	CEO	2003
Mr. Jorge Manuel Oliveira Godinho	51	Director	2003
Mr. Rui Miguel Horta e Costa	43	Director	2000
Mr. José Manuel Gonçalves de Morais Cabral	57	Director	2003
Eng. Arnaldo Pedro Figueirôa Navarro Machado	58	Director	2002
Mr. António Afonso de Pinto Galvão Lucas	60	Director	2004
Mr. José Manuel Trindade Neves Adelino	50	Director	2003
Mr. Luís Filipe Rolim de Azevedo Coutinho	43	Director	2003
Mr. Paulo de Azevedo Pereira da Silva	43	Director	2003
Mr. Pedro Manuel Bastos Mendes Rezende	43	Director	2003

Mr. Francisco de la Fuente Sánchez is Chairman of EDP's Board of Directors and has been on the Board of Directors since January 1997. In addition, Mr. Sánchez is Chairman of the board of directors of ONI, S.G.P.S., member of the board of Hidrocantábrico and member of the Superior Council of BCP. Mr. Sánchez also served as CEO of EDP S.A. between 2000 and 2003, Chairman of EDP Produção and EDP Distribuição between 2002 and 2003, and Chairman of EDP Energia and EDP VALOR – Gestão Integrada de Serviços, S.A. ("EDP VALOR") between 2001 and 2003. From 1997 to 1998, Mr. Sánchez was a member of the board of directors of EN, CENEL, LTE and SLE and between 1998 and 2001, he was Chairman of CERJ and EDP Cogeração, Vice-Chairman of Bandeirante, and a member of the board of directors of EDP Internacional. Mr. Sánchez also served as member of the board of directors of LTE and Hidrotejo from 1994 to 1996. He was General Manager of one of EDP's distribution divisions from 1990 to 1994 and Central Commercial Manager of EDP from 1988 to 1989. He was also assistant to the Board of Directors from 1987 to 1988. Mr. Sánchez holds a degree in electrotechnical engineering from Instituto Superior Técnico de Lisboa.

Mr. João Ramalho Talone was appointed as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of EDP on May, 2003. In addition, Mr. Talone is Chairman of the board of directors of EDP Produção and EDPD and a member of the board of directors of ONI SGPS and Hidrocantábrico. In April 2003, he was elected deputy-chairman of the board of directors of Lusotur. Between January and April 2003, by appointment of the Portuguese government, Mr. Talone was responsible for conducting a study on the restructuring of the Portuguese Energy Sector. Between December 2002 and January 2003 he headed the project to terminate IPE – Instituto de Participações do Estado, a state-owned company holding the Republic of Portugal's interests in several of its subsidiaries. Up to the end of January 2002, Mr. Talone served as Chairman and CEO of the executive board of directors of Eureko (appointed in September 1999), member of the board of directors of BCP (appointed in 1991) and Chairman of Seguros & Pensões (appointed in 1995). Mr. Talone joined the BCP Group as General Manager in April 1988 and was appointed as Chairman of its insurance arm in July 1988. In July 1991 he was elected to the board of BCP-Investimento. Mr. Talone is currently Vice-Chairman of the Portuguese Insurance Association (APS) and member of the board of directors of "Association de Genéve" (International exclusive insurance Forum) where he has been an elected member since 1995. Mr. Talone holds a degree in civil engineering

from Instituto Superior Técnico de Lisboa and an MBA from Universidade Nova de Lisboa in association with the Wharton School of Pennsylvania.

Mr. Jorge Manuel Oliveira Godinho was appointed to EDP's Board of Directors in May 2003. From March 2001 to May 2003, Mr. Godinho was President of the Executive Committee of Edinfor – Sistemas Informáticos, S.A. and Chairman at ACE – Holding, SGPS, S.A. Between 1998 and 2000, he was Adviser of the board of EDP, Executive Member of the board of OPTEP and Vice-Chairman of the board of Optimus. Between 1991 and 1998, Mr. Godinho was Chairman of the board of Portucel SGPS, Portucel Industrial and Portucel Florestal. From 1985 to 1990, he served as Secretary of State for Fisheries. Prior to these assignments, Mr. Godinho was chairman of the board of directors of Docapesca, deputy-Chairman of the Portuguese Industrial Association and a member of the Social Security Financial Management Institute, the National Scientific and Technological Research Board, the Forum for Competitiveness, Efacec Capital, SGPS, S.A and the Fund for Internationalisation of the Portuguese Economy. He was Assistant and Senior Lecturer at the Instituto Superior Técnico. Mr. Godinho holds a degree in engineering from Instituto Superior Técnico de Lisboa and an MBA from Universidade Nova de Lisboa.

Mr. Rui Miguel Horta e Costa was appointed to EDP's Board of Directors in May 2000 and was re-elected in May 2003. Mr. Horta e Costa is also a member of the board of directors of Hidrocantábrico, GALP, EDPD, EDP Produção and ONI. He is also Chief Financial Officer of EDP. He served as Executive Director of UBS Warburg in London from 1995 to 2000, and before that, from 1990 to 1995, he was a member of the board of directors of Grupo Jorge de Mello. Mr. Horta e Costa was Resident Vice President of Citibank Portugal from 1989 to 1990 and from 1987 to 1989 he served in the positions of Director of Banco Finantia and Assistant to the board of directors for the same bank. From 1986 to 1987, he was Account Manager for MDM-Sociedade de Investimentos. Mr. Horta e Costa holds an economics degree from Universidade Cató1ica Portuguesa as well as an MBA in management from the University of Minnesota.

Mr. José Manuel Gonçalves de Morais Cabral was appointed to EDP's Board of Directors in May 2003. He is also a Director of Efacec Capital, SGPS, S,A., and José de Mello Participações II, SGPS, S.A., and Senior Manager of José de Mello Serviços, Lda. From 1995 to 1999, he served as Director and CEO of Lisnave, S.A. Previously, he was Director of IPE, S.A. between 1992 and 1994, and Director of Celbi, S.A. between 1993 and 1995. From 1989 to 1992, he served as Chairman of Air Atlantis, S.A., and between 1970 and 1989 he was Controller and CFO of METAL Portuguesa, S.A. Mr. Morais Cabral holds a degree in Economics from ISCEF, in Lisbon.

Mr. Arnaldo Pedro Figueirôa Navarro Machado was appointed to EDP's Board of Directors in May 2002 and he is presently the Chief Executive Officer of EDPD. Mr. Machado served as CEO of Sociedade Central de Cervejas from 2000 to 2002. He acted as member of the board of Directors of HLC – Engenharia de Gestão e Projectos, S.A. between 1998 and 2000. In the EDP Group he has served as Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors of EDP from 1992 to 1998, Chairman of the Board of MRH – Mudança e Recursos Humanos, SA in 1997 and 1998, member and Chairman of the Board of directors of INTERNEL – Electricidade de Portugal Internacional, SA from 1992 to 1998 and of CPPE, SA between 1994 and 1997, member of the Board of directors of CERJ from 1996 to 1998, of INVESTCO – Veículo de Investimento de Empreendimento and of Hidroeléctrica do Lajeado in Brazil during 1998, of OPTEP from 1997 to 1998, of Turbogás from 1995 to 1998 and of EDP, S.A. in 1991 and 1992. Prior to this, he has served as Member of the Management Council of Sociedade Central de Cervejas from 1988 to 1991, as Chairman of the Board of directors of Sociedade da Água de Luso, S.A during January 1990 and as member of the Board of directors of Setenave between the years of 1984 and 1988. Mr. Machado holds a degree in Naval Engineering from the University of Stracholyde, Glasgow.

Mr. António Afonso de Pinto Galvão Lucas was appointed to EDP's Board of Directors in 2004. He is presently Chairman of the board of directors of EPM – Sociedade Gestora de Participações Sociais, S.A. and of its subsidiaries Fábrica Cerâmica de Valadares, S.A., Valadares España, S.A. and CCS – Serviços de Gestão Lda., companies operating in the ceramic sector. Also in this sector he is Chairman of the board of directors of Secla. Previously, he was manager and director of the CUF Group and SAPEC Group. He was also director of CIP – Portuguese Industry Confederation and is currently the President of APICER – Portuguese Ceramics Association and member of the Superior/Consultive Councils of AEP –

Portuguese Entrepreneurship Association, COTEC – Association for Innovation, Forum for Competitiveness and ERSE – Energy Services Regulator. Mr. Galvão Lucas holds a degree in industrial-chemical engineering from Instituto Superior Técnico.

Mr. José Manuel Trindade Neves Adelino was appointed to EDP's Board of Directors in May 2003. He has been a full Professor of Finance at Universidade Nova de Lisboa since 1995. He is also a member of the National Education Council and of the Board of the Deposit Insurance Fund, and he belongs to the strategic councils of Portugal Telecom and CTT – Correios de Portugal. Mr. Neves Adelino was a non-executive member of the board of Banco Português do Atlântico and served as a consultant to several companies. Mr. Neves Adelino holds a degree in Finance from Universidade Técnica de Lisboa and a graduate degree (Business Administration – DBA), from the Kent State University.

Mr. Luís Filipe Rolim de Azevedo Coutinho was appointed to EDP's Board of Directors in May 2003. He is also Senior Advisor of the Holding of Grupo Abrantina, as well as Professor in Economics at Universidade Nova de Lisboa. Between 1984 and 2002, he served as Senior Advisor at José Bento Pedroso & Filhos, Lda., IPE, Grupo V.I./BTA, Grupo Abrantina, Bank of Portugal, Lisbon Municipality, Calouste Gulbenkian Portuguese Foundation and Finance Secretary of State. He was a member of the boards of directors of several companies of Abrantina Group and CFO of Valora – Serviços de Apoio à Emissão Monetária. He holds a degree in Management from Universidade Católica Portuguesa and an MBA from Universidade Nova de Lisboa.

Mr. Paulo de Azevedo Pereira da Silva was appointed to EDP's Board of Directors in May 2003. He is also General Manager of BCP, Director of LEASEFACTOR SGPS, Chairman of the board of directors of BCP LEASING and Director of CREDIBANCO – Banco de Crédito Pessoal. Mr. Azevedo holds a degree in Economics from Faculdade de Economia do Porto.

Mr. Pedro Manuel Bastos Mendes Rezende was appointed to EDP's Board of Directors in May 2003. He is also serving as President of the Executive Committee of EDP Produção and its subsidiaries and is a member of the board of EDP Energia, EDPD and Hidrocantábrico. Since 1990, Mr. Rezende has been a member of the Boston Consulting Group where he served in the Madrid office until 1995 and in Lisbon office thereon. He was elected Partner and Director in May 1997, co-leading the Lisbon office since then. He was also the local leader of the Energy Practice Area. Prior to this, he was Head of the Testing Department for VALEO – Clutch Division in Spain from 1985 to 1989. Mr. Rezende holds a degree in Industrial Mechanical Engineering from ICAI – Madrid, Spain and an MBA from INSEAD – Fontainebleau, in France.

Executive Officers

EDP has 25 executive officers that are in charge of various business and administrative departments at the holding company level of EDP and that report directly to the Board of Directors. Certain information is set forth below for the executive officers that are in charge of a principal business function.

Name	Age	Position	Year Originally Elected
António Pedro Alfaia de Carvalho	58	General Secretary	2004
António José Marrachinho Soares	43	Acting General Secretary	1998
António José Silva Coutinho	35	Head of Energy Panning Office	2003
António Manuel Barreto Pita de Abreu	54	General Manager	2003
António Manuel Neves Carvalho	54	Head of Environment Office	2000
António Maria Ramos da Silva Vidigal	54	Head of Risk Management Office	2003
António Fernando Melo Martins da Costa	49	General Manager	2003
António Pacheco de Castro	45	Head of Iberian Articulation Office	1994
António Pedro Alfaia de Carvalho	58	Head of Legal Office	1998
Carlos Alves Pereira	38	Head of Business Analysis Office	2003
Eugénio André da Purificação Carvalho	50	Head of Human Resources Office	2001
Horácio M. Piriquito Casimiro	43	Head of Communication and Image Office	2003
João Manuel Manso Neto	46	General Manager	2003
Joaquim Armando Ferreira Silva Filipe	55	General Manager	2003
Joaquim Pedro de Macedo Santos	50	Head of Brazil Articulation Office	2003
Jorge Manuel Ribeirinho Soares Machado	60	General Manager	2003
José Abreu Aguiar	56	Head of Information Systems Office	2000
José Manuel Ferrari Bigares Careto	41	Head of Gas Project	2003
Magda Abdool Magid Vakil	41	Head of Financial Management Office	1998
Maria Joana Pinto Simões	43	Head of Regulation and Tariff Office	2000
Miguel Ribeiro Ferreira	36	Head of Planning and Control, Consolidation and Tax Office	2003
Paula Pinto da Fonseca	43	Head of Quality Office	2003
Pedro Manuel Carreto Pires João	34	Head of Investor Relations Office	2000
Stephan Godinho Lopes Morais	30	Chief of Staff, Cabinet of CEO	2003
Vitor Manuel Silva Leitão	50	Head of Internal Audit Department	2000
Vasco Manuel de Castro Coucello	52	General Manager	2003

The business address of each member of the Board of Directors and each executive officer is Praça Marquês de Pombal, N° 12, 1250-162 Lisbon.

The following financial information is extracted without material adjustment from the audited consolidated financial statements of EDP as at December 31, 2003 and from the unaudited consolidated financial statements of EDP as at June 30, 2003 and 2004

EDP - ENERGIAS DE PORTUGAL, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE PERIODS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 and DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 2003

	as at December 31, 2002	as at December 31, 2003	as at June 30, 2004
	EUR	EUR	EUR
	(Audited)	(Audited)	(Unaudited)
Revenues Sales Services rendered	5,988,141,251 398,417,184	6,456,360,724 521,158,949	3,264,876,687 267,105,443
	6,386,558,435	6,997,519,673	3,531,982,130
Operating costs and expenses: Raw materials and consumables Personnel costs Depreciation and amortisation Suppliers and services Own work capitalised Concession and power-generation rents Provisions Other operating expenses/(income)	3,687,097,277 624,772,247 739,540,618 675,069,959 (241,769,257) 158,176,302 100,645,395 (5,677,692) 5,737,854,849	3,921,045,567 646,635,938 845,591,792 632,518,161 (235,622,934) 175,642,930 75,705,925 10,260,489	1,920,486,950 324,734,589 388,796,357 302,043,532 (104,175,739) 94,732,998 46,237,468 7,558,566 2,980,414,721
Operating margin	648,703,586 381,720,639 (604,564,061) (138,938,784)	905,741,804 309,024,268 (668,044,373) (14,443,172)	551,567,409 104,890,354 (286,346,609) (20,074,831)
Profit before tax	286,921,380 171,739,322	532,278,528 195,533,884	350,036,323 103,392,186
Profit after tax	115,122,058 (220,033,768)	336,744,644 (44,364,346)	246,644,137 (28,208,211)
Consolidated Net Profit	335,215,826	381,108,990	274,852,348
Net Income per share - Basic - Euros	0.11	0.13	0.09

EDP – ENERGIAS DE PORTUGAL, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND JUNE 30, 2004

	June 2004	December 2003
	Euro '000	Euro '000
	(Unaudited)	
Assets Cash and cash equivalents	203,532,499 1,082,728,565 633,570,390 144,015,596	287,495,787 1,108,064,027 651,843,016 159,236,265
Total Current Assets	2,063,847,050	2,206,639,095
Long term receivables. Investments, net Fixed assets, net Other assets, net	577,641,462 1,791,518,713 11,706,052,711 2,650,940,306	435,842,281 1,622,450,855 11,651,599,272 2,734,138,100
Total Non-Current Assets	16,726,153,192	16,444,030,508
Total Assets	18,790,000,242	18,650,669,603
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity Short term debt and current portion of long term debt Accounts payable – trade Accounts payable – other Accrued cost. Taxes payable. Deferred revenue	1,649,066,202 703,335,717 215,279,613 380,375,888 204,633,749 392,120,946	1,579,129,951 782,625,448 187,261,866 236,534,460 269,102,846 235,764,000
Total Current Liabilities	3,544,812,115	3,290,418,571
Long term debt	5,810,865,813 532,751,000 2,928,312,249	5,913,579,510 562,262,924 2,962,410,102
Total Non-Current Liabilities.	9,271,929,062	9,438,252,536
Total Liabilities	12,816,741,177	12,728,671,107
Minority interests	233,836,391 375,201,374	236,484,847 387,506,424
Share capital. Treasury stock Reserves and retained earnings Consolidated net profit Total Shareholders' Equity	3,000,000,000 (55,576,987) 2,144,945,939 274,852,348 5,364,221,300	3,000,000,000 (49,019,637) 1,965,917,871 381,108,991 5,298,007,225
Total liabilities and Shareholders' equity	18,790,000,242	18,650,669,603
Total Intelligent and Ontrologoto equity	10,770,000,272	10,050,005,005

EDP FINANCE B.V.

EDP Finance B.V. is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of EDP – Energias de Portugal, S.A. EDP Finance B.V. was incorporated on October 1, 1999 under the laws of The Netherlands as a private company with limited liability (*besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid*) having its statutory seat in Amsterdam, The Netherlands and registered with the Amsterdam Commercial Register under No. 34121496 on October 1, 1999. Its registered office is at Strawinskylaan 3105, 1077ZX, Amsterdam, The Netherlands. EDP Finance B.V.'s principal activity is to act as a finance company for the EDP – Energias de Portugal, S.A. group. EDP Finance B.V. has no subsidiaries.

Management

The Managing Directors of EDP Finance B.V. at the date of this Information Memorandum are:

Name	Business Address
ABN AMRO Trust Company (Nederland) B.V.	Strawinskylaan 3105, 7th Floor, 1077ZX, Amsterdam The Netherlands

The Directors of ABN AMRO Trust Company (Nederland) B.V. are J.M.J. Kallen and J.W.C. van Burg. Their business address is Strawinskylaan 3105, 7th Floor, 1077ZX, Amsterdam, The Netherlands. Their significant outside interests comprise directorships on the boards of numerous finance vehicle companies.

EDP – Energias de Portugal, S.A. Praça Marquês Pombal, 1250-162 Lisbon

The Directors of EDP – Energias de Portugal, S.A., their business address and their significant outside interests are set out on pages 57 to 60 of the Information Memorandum.

Capitalisation and Indebtedness

The following table sets out the capitalisation and indebtedness of EDP Finance B.V. as at December 31, 2003 and June 30, 2004:

As of December 31, 2003	As of June 30, 2004	
EUR (in thousands)	EUR (in thousands)	
172,514.8	457,882.4	
958,423.1 549,172.5	958,772.9 549,313.7	
1,507,595.5	1,508,086.7	
20.0 133.5	20.0 0.0	
153.5	20.0	
1,646,773.6	1,647,131.2	
	December 31, 2003 EUR (in thousands) 172,514.8 958,423.1 549,172.5 1,507,595.5 20.0 133.5 153.5	

- (1) As at June 30, 2004, EDP Finance B.V.'s issued and fully paid share capital consisted of 200 ordinary shares with a nominal value of EUR 100 each.
- (2) As at June 30, 2004 the indebtedness of EDP Finance B.V. was unsecured, unguaranteed and there are no contingent liabilities or guarantees.
- (3) There has been no material change to the consolidated capitalisation and indebtedness, contingent liabilities or guarantees of EDP Finance B.V. since June 30, 2004.

TAXATION

The following is a general description of certain Netherlands and Portuguese tax considerations relating to the Instruments. It does not purport to be a complete analysis of all tax considerations relating to the Instruments. Prospective purchasers of Instruments should consult their tax advisers as to the consequences under the tax laws of the country of which they are resident for tax purposes and the tax laws of the Netherlands and/or Portugal of acquiring, holding and disposing of Instruments and receiving payments of interest, principal and/or other amounts under the Instruments. This summary is based upon the law as in effect on the date of this Information Memorandum and is subject to any change in law that may take effect after such date.

Portugal

The summary below in relation to Instruments issued by EDP assumes that such Instruments would be treated by the Portuguese tax authorities as corporate bonds ("obrigações") as defined under Portuguese law. If Portuguese tax authorities would not treat Instruments as "obrigações" no assurance can be given that the same tax regime would apply.

Unless an exemption has been granted under article 27 of the Portuguese Tax Benefits Code with regard to payments of interest, payments of interest to be made by EDP on Instruments to be issued by it to entities non-resident in Portugal for tax purposes and without permanent establishment to which the income is attributable are subject to Portuguese withholding tax at the rate of 20 per cent., which may be reduced (to 10 per cent., 12 per cent. or 15 per cent., depending on the applicable treaty) in relation to residents of certain jurisdictions pursuant to the provisions of treaties for the avoidance of double taxation entered into by Portugal, as may be in force from time to time, to the extent that all formalities required for application of such lower rate are met.

The gains obtained on the disposal of Instruments issued by EDP by an individual not resident in Portugal for tax purposes will not be subject to Portuguese capital gains taxation.

The gains obtained on the disposals of Instruments issued by EDP by a legal entity non-resident in Portugal for tax purposes and without permanent establishment to which the income is attributable will also not be subject to Portuguese capital gains taxation, pursuant to article 26 of the Portuguese Tax Benefits Code, provided that:

- (a) the share capital of the corporate holder is not more than 25 per cent. directly or indirectly held by Portuguese resident entities;
- (b) the holder is not domiciled in a country, territory or region subject to a tax regime clearly more favourable, included in a list approved by Ordinance issued by the Portuguese Minister of Finance.

If any of the above circumstances is not met, such gains will be subject to taxation at a rate of 25 per cent., subject to the provisions of specific treaties for the avoidance of double taxation under which such gains may not be subject to taxation to the extent that all formalities required for the application of such lower rate are met.

Payments to be made by EDP, B.V., of interest or principal on Instruments issued by it to an individual or legal entity non-resident in Portugal for tax purposes and without permanent establishment to which the income is attributable are not subject to Portuguese withholding tax.

Netherlands

General

The following summary describes the principal Netherlands tax consequences of the acquisition, holding, redemption and disposal of the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons. This summary solely addresses holders of Instruments, Receipts and Coupons, who are not a resident nor deemed to be a resident of the Netherlands. This summary does not purport to be a comprehensive description of all Netherlands tax considerations that may be relevant to a decision to acquire, to hold, and to dispose of the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons. Each prospective holder of Instruments, Receipts or Coupons

should consult a professional adviser with respect to the tax consequences of an investment in the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons. The discussion of certain Netherlands taxes set forth below is included for general information purposes only.

This summary is based on the Netherlands tax legislation, published case law, treaties, rules, regulations and similar documentation, in force as of the date of this Information Memorandum, without prejudice to any amendments introduced at a later date and implemented with retroactive effect.

Withholding Tax

All payments on the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons by EDP B.V. may be made free of withholding or deduction of, for or on account of taxes of whatever nature imposed, levied, withheld or assessed by The Netherlands or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein, provided that the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons do not in fact have the function of equity of EDP B.V. within the meaning of Article 10(1)(d) of the Coporate Income Tax Act.

Corporate Income Tax and Individual Income Tax

A holder of Instruments, Receipts or Coupons that is not a resident nor deemed to be a resident of the Netherlands for Netherlands tax purposes is not taxable in respect of income derived from the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons and capital gains realised upon the redemption, disposal, transfer or alienation of the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons, unless:

- (i) the holder of Instruments, Receipts or Coupons has an enterprise or an interest in an enterprise that is, in whole or in part, carried on through a permanent establishment or a permanent representative in the Netherlands to which Netherlands permanent establishment or permanent representative the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons are attributable; or
- (ii) the holder of Instruments, Receipts or Coupons is entitled to a share in the profits of an enterprise that is effectively managed in the Netherlands, other than by way of securities or through an employment contract, and to which enterprise the Instruments, Receipts or Coupons are attributable; or
- (iii) the holder of Instruments, Receipts or Coupons, or a related person to the holder of Instruments, Receipts or Coupons has, directly or indirectly, a substantial interest or a deemed substantial interest (*aanmerkelijk belang*) in EDP B.V., within the meaning of Section 4.3 of the Income Tax Act 2001; or
- (iv) in case of an individual holder of Instruments, Receipts or Coupons, such holder of Instruments, Receipts or Coupons is considered to perform activities in the Netherlands with respect to the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons that exceed "regular active portfolio management" (normaal, actief vermogensbeheer).

Gift and Inheritance Taxes

No gift or inheritance taxes will arise in the Netherlands in respect of the acquisition of the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons by way of gift by, or as a result of the death of, a holder of Instruments, Receipts or Coupons who is neither a resident nor deemed to be a resident of the Netherlands, unless:

- (i) the Instruments, Receipts or Coupons are or were attributable to an enterprise or part of an enterprise that the donor or deceased carried on through a permanent establishment or a permanent representative in the Netherlands at the time of the gift or the death of the deceased; or
- (ii) the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons are or were attributable to the assets of an enterprise that is effectively managed in the Netherlands and the donor is or the deceased was entitled to a share in the profits of that enterprise, at the time of the gift or at the time of his or her death, other than by way of securities or through an employment contract; or

(iii) in the case of a gift of the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons by an individual who at the date of the gift was neither a resident nor deemed to be a resident of the Netherlands, such individual dies within 180 days after the date of the gift, while at the time of his or her death being a resident or deemed to be a resident of the Netherlands.

Treaties

Treaties may limit the Dutch sovereignty to levy gift and inheritance tax.

Other Taxes and Duties

No Dutch VAT, capital duty, registration tax, customs duty, transfer tax, stamp duty or any other similar documentary tax or duty, will be payable in the Netherlands by a non-resident holder of Instruments, Receipts or Coupons in respect of or in connection with the subscription, issue, placement, allotment or delivery of the Instruments, Receipts and Coupons.

EU Savings Directive

On June 3, 2003, the European Council of Economics and Finance Ministers adopted a Directive on the taxation of savings income. Under the Directive Member States will (if equivalent measures have been introduced by certain non-EU countries) be required, from July 1, 2005, to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details of payments of interest (or similar income) paid by a person within its jurisdiction to an individual resident in that other Member State. However, for a transitional period, Belgium, Luxembourg and Austria will instead be required (unless during that period they elect otherwise) to operate a withholding system in relation to such payments (the ending of such transitional period being dependent upon the conclusion of certain other agreements relating to information exchange with certain other countries).

SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE

Instruments may be sold from time to time by the Issuer to any one or more of ABN AMRO Bank N.V., Banco BPI, S.A., Banco Espírito Santo de Investimento, S.A., Banco Santander de Negócios Portugal, S.A. Barclays Bank PLC, BCP Investimento-Banco Comercial Português de Investimento, S.A., BNP Paribas, Caixa-Banco de Investimento, S.A., Citigroup Global Markets Limited, Deutsche Bank AG London, Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Mitsubishi Securities International plc, Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited and UBS Limited (the "Dealers"). The arrangements under which Instruments may from time to time be agreed to be sold by the Issuer to, and purchased by, Dealers are set out in an amended and restated dealership agreement dated December 23, 2004 (the "Dealership Agreement") and made between the Issuer and the Dealers. Any such agreement will, *inter alia*, make provision for the form and terms and conditions of the relevant Instruments, the price at which such Instruments will be purchased by the Dealers and the commissions or other agreed deductibles (if any) payable or allowable by the Issuer in respect of such purchase. The Dealership Agreement makes provision for the resignation or termination of appointment of existing Dealers and for the appointment of additional or other Dealers either generally in respect of the Programme or in relation to a particular Tranche of Instruments.

United States of America: Regulation S Category 2; TEFRA D, unless TEFRA C is specified as applicable in the relevant Pricing Supplement; Rule 144A Eligible if so specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Instruments have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act") and may not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except in certain transactions exempt from, or not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act. Terms used in the preceding sentence have the meanings given to them by Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Instruments in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or its possessions or to U.S. persons, except in certain transactions permitted by U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in the preceding sentence have the meanings given to them by the United States Internal Revenue Code and regulations thereunder.

Each Dealer has agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that, except as permitted by the Dealership Agreement, it will not offer, sell or deliver Instruments, (i) as part of their distribution at any time or (ii) otherwise until forty days after the completion of the distribution of the Instruments comprising the relevant Tranche, as certified to the Issue and Paying Agent or the Issuer by such Dealer (or, in the case of a sale of a Tranche of Instruments to or through more than one Dealer, by each of such Dealers as to Instruments of such Tranche purchased by or through it, in which case the Issue and Paying Agent or the Issuer shall notify each such Dealer when all such Dealers have so certified) within the United States or to or for the account or benefit of U.S. persons, and such Dealer will have sent to each dealer to which it sells Instruments during the restricted period relating thereto a confirmation or other notice setting forth the restrictions on offers and sales of the Instruments within the United States or to or for the account or benefit of U.S. persons.

In addition, until forty days after the commencement of the offering of Instruments comprising any Tranche, any offer or sale of Instruments within the United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the offering) may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise than in accordance with an available exemption from registration under the Securities Act.

Each issuance of Index Linked Instruments or Dual Currency Instruments shall be subject to such additional U.S. selling restrictions as the Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree as a term of the issuance and purchase of such Instruments, which additional selling restrictions shall be set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Portugal

No offering material in relation to the Instruments has been approved by the Comissão do Mercado de Valores Mobiliários (Portuguese Securities Authority). Each Dealer has represented and agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree that it has not offered or sold and it will not offer or sell any Instruments to residents of Portugal otherwise than as stated in the applicable Pricing Supplement and in accordance with applicable law.

The Netherlands

Each Dealer has agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Dealership Agreement will be required to agree, that Instruments (including rights representing an interest in an Instrument in global form) issued under the Programme that are offered in or from within the Netherlands shall, in order to comply with the Netherlands Securities Market Supervision Act 1995 (Wet toezicht effectenverkeer 1995, hereinafter the "WTE") only be offered:

- (i) in the event that such Instruments have been or are likely to be admitted on the Official Segment of the Stock Market of Euronext Amsterdam N.V.;
- (ii) subject to the proviso stated below, in the event that (a) such Instruments have been admitted to the official listing on a stock exchange or have otherwise been publicly offered in another state which is a party to the Treaty on the European Economic Area ("EEA") and (b) this Information Memorandum has been approved by, and the applicable Pricing Supplement has been submitted to or approved by, the competent authority as referred to in Article 20 or Article 21 of EC Directive 89/298/EEC and (c) the Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets (Autoriteit Financiële Markten, hereinafter the "AFM") has confirmed, where necessary, the availability of mutual recognition in respect of such documents; or
- (iii) if they are part of a Series or Tranche of Instruments comprising only fully paid Instruments with a denomination of at least euro 50,000 (or the equivalent in any other currency) provided that, if such Instruments are issued:
 - (a) at a discount, such Instruments shall have an issue price of at least such amount;
 - (b) on a partly-paid basis, they shall be paid up by their initial holders to at least such amount: and
 - (c) with a denomination of precisely euro 50,000 (or equivalent in other currencies), they shall be issued on a fully-paid basis and at par or at a premium; or
- (iv) as part of their initial distribution or at any time thereafter, to individuals or legal entities situated in the Netherlands (in the case of Instruments to be issued by EDP) or anywhere in the world (in the case of Instruments to be issued by EDP B.V.) who or which trade or invest in securities in the conduct of a business or profession (which includes investment banks, banks, credit institutions, brokers, securities firms, insurance companies, pension funds, investment institutions, central governments, large international and supranational organisations, other institutional investors and other comparable parties, including treasury departments of large commercial enterprises, which are regularly active in the financial markets in a professional manner), in which case it must be made clear upon making the offer and in any documents or advertisements in which a forthcoming offering of such Instruments is publicly announced (whether electronically or otherwise) that such offer is exclusively made to the said individuals or legal entities; or
- (v) (for syndicated Tranches of Instruments) if the following criteria are met:
 - (a) the Instruments are subscribed for and placed by a syndicate of which at least two members are established in different states that are a party to the Treaty on the EEA;
 - (b) 60 per cent. or more of the issue is offered outside the country where the Issuer is established; and

(c) investors may only acquire Instruments being offered through the intermediary of a credit institution registered with the Dutch Central Bank or other financial institution which in the conduct of a profession or business provides one or more of the services described in paragraphs 7 and 8 of the Annex to the Banking Co-ordination Directive 2000/12/EC;

provided that the Issuer and each relevant Dealer has further represented and agreed that it has not publicly promoted and shall not publicly promote (whether electronically or otherwise) the offer or sale of such Instruments by conducting a generalised advertising or cold-calling campaign in the Netherlands (in the case of Instruments to be issued by EDP) or anywhere in the world (in the case of Instruments to be issued by EDP B.V.); or

- (vi) if all Instruments pertaining to any particular Series are purchased by one or more Dealers acting as principals, and such Dealers:
 - (a) are not incorporated in or acting through a branch office in The Netherlands;
 - (b) qualify as professional market parties (as described under (iv) above); and
 - (c) offer all such Instruments exclusively outside The Netherlands;
- (vii) if any other exemption from the prohibition contained in article 3 paragraph 1 of the WTE applies or if the AFM has granted an (individual) dispensation from the above prohibition and the conditions attached to such exemption or dispensation are fully complied with.

Provided that in the case of (ii) above:

- (a) the Issuer and the relevant Dealer or Dealers procure that any advertisement or document in which a forthcoming offering of Instruments is publicly announced (whether electronically or otherwise) will be submitted to the AFM prior to publication thereof and will mention the respective dates on which this Information Memorandum and the relevant Pricing Supplement were published and were made available or (as the case may be) will be published and will be made available for inspection at the registered office of EDP, EDP B.V. and at the office of the Principal Paying Agent; and
- (b) each relevant Dealer severally represents and agrees that prior to the submission of this Information Memorandum (with the approval of the competent authorities) and the relevant Pricing Supplement to the AFM and the publication thereof in accordance with (a) above:
 - (i) it has not offered, transferred or sold any Instruments and will not, directly or indirectly, offer, transfer or sell any Instruments except to individuals or legal entities as referred to in (iv) above; and
 - (ii) either it has not distributed and will not distribute any offering or promotional materials in respect of the Instruments or it has complied and will comply with the conditions under (iv) (a) and (b) above,

and each invitation telex and Pricing Supplement in respect of such Instruments will set forth the restrictions under (i) and (ii) above.

In addition and without prejudice to the relevant restrictions set out above, Zero Coupon Instruments (as defined below) in definitive form may only be transferred and accepted, directly or indirectly, within, from or into The Netherlands through the mediation of either EDP, EDP B.V. or a member of Euronext Amsterdam N.V. in accordance with the Dutch Savings Certificates Act (*Wet inzake Spaarbewijzen*) of May 21, 1985 (as amended) and, in addition thereto, if such Zero Coupon Instruments in definitive form do not qualify as commercial paper traded between professional borrowers and lenders within the meaning of the agreement of February 2, 1987 attached to the Royal Decree of March 11, 1987 (*Staatscourant 129*) (as amended) each transfer and acceptance should be recorded in a transaction note, including the name and address of each party to the transaction, the nature of the transaction and the details and serial numbers of such Instruments. No such mediation is required in respect of (a) the

transfer and acceptance of Zero Coupon Instruments whilst in the form of rights representing an interest in a Zero Coupon Instrument in global form; or (b) the initial issue of Zero Coupon Instruments in definitive form to the first holders thereof; or (c) a transfer and acceptance of Zero Coupon Instruments in definitive form between individuals not acting in the conduct or a business or profession, or (d) the transfer and acceptance of such Zero Coupon Instruments within, from or into The Netherlands if all Zero Coupon Instruments (either in definitive form or as rights representing an interest in a Zero Coupon Instrument in global form) of any particular Series or Tranche are issued outside The Netherlands and are not distributed within The Netherlands in the course of initial distribution or immediately thereafter. In the event that the Savings Certificates Act applies, certain identification requirements in relation to the issue and transfer of, and payments on, Zero Coupon Instruments have to be complied with. For the purposes of this paragraph "Zero Coupon Instruments" are Instruments that are in bearer form and that constitute a claim for a fixed sum against the Issuer and on which interest does not become due during their tenor or on which no interest is due whatsover.

United Kingdom

Each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that:

- (1) No offer to public listed Instruments: with respect to Instruments which have a maturity of one year or more and are to be admitted to the Official List, it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any such Instruments to persons in the United Kingdom prior to admission of such Instruments to listing in accordance with Part VI of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the "FSMA") except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses or otherwise in circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995 (as amended) or the FSMA;
- (2) No offer to public unlisted Instruments: with respect to Instruments with a maturity of one year or more and which are not to be admitted to the Official List, it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any such Instruments to persons in the United Kingdom prior to the expiry of a period of six months from the issue date of such Instruments except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses or otherwise in circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995 as amended;
- (3) General compliance: it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to such Instruments in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom;
- (4) Investment advertisements: it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of any Instruments in circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to the Issuer; and
- (5) Instruments having a maturity of less than one year: in relation to any Instruments having a maturity of less than one year, (a) it is a person whose ordinary activities involve it in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of its business and (b) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Instruments other than to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses or who it is reasonable to expect will acquire, hold, manage or dispose of investments (as principal and agent) for the purposes of their businesses where the issue of the Instruments would otherwise constitute a contravention of section 19 of the FSMA by the Issuer.

Japan

The Instruments have not been and will not be registered under the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan (the "Securities and Exchange Law") and, each Dealer has agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree that it will not offer or sell any Instruments directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, any Japanese Person or to others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to any Japanese Person except pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the Securities and Exchange Law and any other applicable laws and regulations of Japan. For the purposes of this paragraph, "Japanese Person" shall mean any person resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity organised under the laws of Japan. No Instruments denominated in Japanese Yen shall be sold without the specific approval of the Japanese Ministry of Finance, except for Instruments which are already permitted by the Japanese Ministry of Finance.

Germany

Each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that Instruments have not been and will not be offered, sold or publicly promoted or advertised by it in the Federal Republic of Germany other than in compliance with the German Securities Selling Prospectus Act (*Wertpapier-verkaufsprospektgesetz*) of December 13, 1990, as amended, or any other laws applicable in the Federal Republic of Germany governing the issue, offering and sale of securities.

General

Other than with respect to the listing of the Instruments on such stock exchange as may be specified in the Pricing Supplement, no action has been or will be taken in any country or jurisdiction by the Issuer or the Dealers that would permit a public offering of Instruments, or possession or distribution of any offering material in relation thereto, in any country or jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Persons into whose hands this Information Memorandum or any Pricing Supplement comes are required by the Issuer and the Dealers to comply with all applicable laws and regulations in each country or jurisdiction in or from which they purchase, offer, sell or deliver Instruments or have in their possession or distribute such offering material, in all cases at their own expense.

The Dealership Agreement provides that the Dealers shall not be bound by any of the restrictions relating to any specific jurisdiction (set out above) to the extent that such restrictions shall, as a result of change(s) or change(s) in official interpretation, after the date hereof, in applicable laws and regulations, no longer be applicable but without prejudice to the obligations of the Dealers described in the paragraph headed "General" above.

Selling restrictions may be supplemented or modified with the agreement of the Issuer. Any such supplement or modification will be set out in the relevant Pricing Supplement (in the case of a supplement or modification relevant only to a particular Tranche of Instruments) or (in any other case) in a supplement to this document.

GENERAL INFORMATION

1. The listing of the Instruments on the Official List will be expressed as a percentage of their nominal amount (exclusive of accrued interest). It is expected that each Tranche of Instruments which is to be admitted for listing on the Offical List and trading on the London Stock Exchange's market for listed securities will be admitted separately as and when issued upon submission to the UK Listing Authority and the London Stock Exchange of the relevant Pricing Supplement and any other information required by the UK Listing Authority and the London Stock Exchange, subject in each case to the issue of a Global Instrument or Instruments initially representing the Instruments of such Tranche. The listing of the Programme in respect of the Instruments is expected to be granted on or about December 29, 2004.

Instruments may be issued pursuant to the Programme which will not be admitted to listing, trading and/or quotation by the UK Listing Authority or the London Stock Exchange or any other listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system or which will be admitted to listing, trading and/or quotation by such listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system as the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) may agree.

- 2. The establishment of the Programme was authorised by the Board of Directors of EDP at a meeting held on September 21, 1999 and by the management board of EDP B.V. at a meeting held on October 8, 1999. The increase in the amount of the Programme to €5,000,000,000 and the entering into of the Trust Deed and the Keep Well Agreement was authorised by the Board of Directors of EDP at a meeting held on March 13, 2001 and by the management board of EDP B.V. at a meeting held on March 8, 2001. The update of the Programme was authorised by the Board of Directors of EDP at a meeting held on February 2, 2004 and by the management board of EDP B.V. at a meeting held on December 17, 2004. EDP and EDP B.V. have obtained or will obtain from time to time all necessary consents, approvals and authorisations in connection with the issue and performance of the Instruments and their respective obligations under the Trust Deed and the Keep Well Agreement.
- 3. The Instruments have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. The appropriate common code and the International Securities Identification Number in relation to the Instruments of each Series will be specified in the Pricing Supplement relating thereto. The relevant Pricing Supplement shall specify any other clearing system as shall have accepted the relevant Instruments for clearance together with any further appropriate information.
- 4. Bearer Instruments (other than Temporary Global Instruments) and any Coupon appertaining thereto will bear a legend substantially to the following effect: "Any United States person who holds this obligation will be subject to limitations under the United States income tax laws, including the limitations provided in Sections 165(j) and 1287(a) of the Internal Revenue Code."
 - The sections referred to in such legend provide that a United States person who holds a Bearer Instrument or Coupon generally will not be allowed to deduct any loss realised on the sale, exchange or redemption of such Bearer Instrument or Coupon and any gain (which might otherwise be characterised as capital gain) recognised on such sale, exchange or redemption will be treated as ordinary income.
- 5. So long as Instruments are capable of being issued under the Programme, copies of the following documents will, when published, be available from the registered office of EDP, EDP B.V. and from the specified office of the Issue and Paying Agent for the time being in London (together with English translations in the case of paragraphs (i), (ii) and (iii) below):
 - (i) the constitutional documents of EDP and EDP B.V.;
 - (ii) the audited consolidated financial statements of EDP in respect of the financial years ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003 and the audited financial statements of EDP B.V. in respect of the financial years ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003;

- (iii) the most recently published audited annual financial statements of EDP and EDP B.V. and the most recently published unaudited interim financial statements (if any) of EDP and EDP B.V.;
- (iv) the Dealership Agreement, the Trust Deed, the Keep Well Agreement, the Agency Agreement and the forms of the Instruments, the Receipts, the Coupons and the Talons;
- (v) a copy of this Information Memorandum;
- (vi) any future information memoranda, prospectuses, offering circulars and supplements including Pricing Supplements (save that a Pricing Supplement relating to an unlisted Instrument will only be available for inspection by a holder of such Instrument and such holder must produce evidence satisfactory to the relevant Paying Agent, as the case may be, as to its holding of Instruments and identity) to this Information Memorandum and any other documents incorporated herein or therein by reference; and
- (vii) in the case of each issue of listed Instruments subscribed pursuant to a subscription agreement, the subscription agreement (or equivalent document).
- 6. Save as disclosed in this Information Memorandum, there has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of EDP, EDP B.V. or the Group since June 30, 2004, and there has been no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of EDP, EDP B.V. or the Group since the date of the last audited annual accounts being December 31, 2003.
- 7. None of EDP, EDP B.V. and any other member of the Group is or has been involved in any legal or arbitration proceedings (including any proceedings which are pending or threatened of which EDP or EDP B.V. is aware) which may have or have had in the 12 months preceding the date of this document a significant effect on the financial position of EDP, EDP B.V. or the Group.
- 8. PricewaterhouseCoopers, audited the financial statements for the three years ended December 31, 2003 of EDP in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Portugal and issued an unqualified auditors' report thereon. PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V., audited the financial statements for the three years ended December 31, 2003 of EDP B.V., in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in The Netherlands and issued an unqualified auditors' report thereon.

The Trust Deed will provide that the Trustee may rely on any certificate or report by the auditors of the relevant Issuer or any other person called for by or provided to the Trustee (whether or not addressed to the Trustee) in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed as sufficient evidence of the facts stated therein notwithstanding that such certificate or report and/or any engagement letter or other document entered into by the Trustee in connection therewith contains a monetary or other limit on the liability of the auditors of the relevant Issuer or such other person in respect thereof.

REGISTERED OFFICE OF EDP FINANCE B.V.

Strawinskylaan 3105 1077ZX Amsterdam

REGISTERED AND HEAD OFFICE OF EDP

Praça Marquês de Pombal 1250-162 Lisbon

DEALERS

ABN AMRO Bank N.V.

250 Bishopsgate London EC2M 4AA

Banco BPI, S.A.

Largo Jean Monnet, 1-4th Floor 1269-067 Lisbon

Banco Espírito Santo Investimento, S.A.

R. Alexandre Herculano, 38 1269-161 Lisbon

Banco Santander de Negócios Portugal, S.A.

Av. Eng Duarte Pacheco Torre 1-6 Amoreiras 1099-024 Lisbon

Barclays Bank PLC

5 The North Colonnade Canary Wharf London E14 4BB

BCP Investimento - Banco Comercial Português de Investimento, S.A.

Av. José Malhoa Lote 1686,1° 1070 157 Lisbon

BNP Paribas

10 Harewood Avenue London NW1 6AA

Caixa-Banco de Investimento, S.A.

Rua Barata Salgueiro, 33 1269-057 Lisbon

Citigroup Global Markets Limited

Citigroup Centre Canada Square Canary Wharf London E14 5LB

Deutsche Bank AG London

Winchester House 1 Great Winchester Street London EC2N 2DB

Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft

Juergen-Ponto-Platz 1 60301 Frankfurt-am-Main

Mitsubishi Securities International plc

6 Broadgate London EC2M 2AA

Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited

25 Cabot Square Canary Wharf London E14 4QA

UBS Limited

1 Finsbury Avenue London EC2M 2PP

AUDITORS

to EDP

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Avenida da Liberdade, 245-8a 1259-034 Lisbon To EDP B.V.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V.

Prins Bernhardplein 200 1090 GB Amsterdam

TRUSTEE

Deutsche Trustee Company Limited

Winchester House 1 Great Winchester Street London EC2N 2DB

ISSUE AND PAYING AGENT

Deutsche Bank AG

Winchester House 1 Great Winchester Street London EC2N 2DB

REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT

Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A.

2 Boulevard Konrad Adenauer L-1115 Luxembourg

LEGAL ADVISERS

To EDP as to English law

Clifford Chance Limited Liability Partnership

10 Upper Bank Street London E14 5JJ To EDP as to Portuguese law

Morais Leitão, Galvão Teles, Soares da Silva & Associados

> Rua Castilho, 75-6-E 1250-068 Lisbon

To EDP B.V. as to Netherlands law

Allen & Overy LLP

Apollolaan 15 1077 AB Amsterdam To the Dealers and the Trustee as to English law

Allen & Overy LLP

One New Change London EC4M 9QQ

To the Dealers and the Trustee as to Portuguese law

Vieira de Almeida & Associados

Rua Mouzinho da Silveira, 10 1250-167 Lisbon

AUTHORISED ADVISER

Morgan Stanley & Co. International Limited

25 Cabot Square Canary Wharf London E14 4QA

